Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

Friday, 3 June 2022
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on
Monday, 13 June 2022
beginning at
7:00 pm
in the
Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

TO:

Councillor Cynthia Garton (Chair)
Councillor Janice Asman (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tim Bearder
Councillor Ian Corben
Councillor Richard Gomer
Councillor Leigh Hadaway
Councillor Keith House

Staff Contacts:

Councillor Dave Kinloch
Councillor Rupert Kyrle
Councillor Derek Pretty
Councillor Bruce Tennent
Councillor Jane Welsh

Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer, 02380 688298
Email:nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk. Please email
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak
before the meeting.
Kitty Budden, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8266; Email:
kitty.budden@eastleigh.gov.uk

JOANNE CASSAR
Executive Head of Governance

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website
as well as in other formats.
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting,
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed. To register please
contact the Democratic Services Officer above.

1

Please be aware that the filming, audio recording, photography and use of social media is
permitted at meetings open to the public. We ask that you notify the Chair or Support
Officers in advance so that all attendees can be notified, and reasonable facilities can be
provided. More information can be found here.
Please note that Councillors will be using tablet devices to access meeting papers.

2

AGENDA
1.
2.

Apologies
Declarations of Interest
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the
agenda. Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

3.

Minutes (Pages 7 - 12)
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 March 2022.

4.

Public Participation
You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following email
address: democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is
12pm on Friday 10 June 2022.
Please let us know if you wish to attend the meeting in person so that we can
manage numbers. We are still encouraging gall those in attendance to take a
lateral flow test before attending the meeting. PLEASE DO NOT ATTEND IF
YOU HAVE ANY COVID-19 SYMPTOMS.

5.

Chair's report

6.

Local Area Manager's Report

7.

Presentation on Planning Guidelines

8.

Planning Application - 88 Hindmarch Crescent, Hedge End, SO30 0AP F/22/92879 (Pages 13 - 22)
Change of use of amenity land adjacent to 88 Hindmarch Crescent to be used as
domestic garden. Removal of existing fencing, to erect 1m high railings. Retention
of hard surfaced extension to parking area (F/22/92879).

9.

Planning Application - 8 Precosa Road, Botley, SO30 2NX - H/22/92946 (Pages
23 - 34)
Two storey side extension after removal of existing car port (Re-submission)
(H/22/92946).

10.

Planning Application - Itchen Valley Country Park, Allington Lane, West End F/22/92889 (Pages 35 - 58)
Provision of new visitor facilities comprising the creation of tented events space at
Highwood Barn Hub, Remodelling of Highwood and Kingfisher barns, Reprovision
of play equipment at existing play areas, addition of 1no. modular visitor building
at High Hill Field, Provision of new parking area, Rewilding of existing parking
bays on north west side of access road, installation of cess pits, alterations to
access roads and footpaths and associated hard and soft landscaping and

3

ancillary structures (F/22/92889).

11.

Planning Application - 1 Lankester House, Kettle and Cake, Freegrounds Road,
Hedge End, SO30 0HG - A/22/92460 (Pages 59 - 66)
Consent to install 2no. non-illuminated fascia signs. (Amended description)
(A/22/92460).

12.

Maunsell Way Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) (Pages 67 - 72)

13.

Various Roads Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) (Pages 73 - 104)

14.

Boorley Green Street Naming Report (Pages 105 - 110)

15.

Financial Management (Pages 111 - 118)

16.

Appointments to Outside Bodies (Pages 119 - 130)

17.

Annual Review (Pages 131 - 138)

18.

Planning Appeals
The Legal Services Manager to report:
(a)

that the following appeals have been lodged:
Land to the South of Netley Hill Farm, St John's Road, Hedge End,
Southampton, SO30 4DG
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant permission to fell 1 no. oak
(T1) and replace.
11 Fairfax Mews, Thornhill, Southampton, SO19 6DY
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for infill
ground floor extension with side wrap around, first floor addition over
ground floor extension and existing garage.
Land South of Snakemoor Lane, East of Winchester Road (Denhams
Corner), SO32 2BX
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for the
construction of five adaptable dwellings for disabled persons/intergenerational families with widened vehicular access from Snakemoor
Lane, new pedestrian access from Winchester Road, with land available
for strategic Denhams Corner roundabout improvement scheme.
Holly Rise, Burnetts Lane, West End, Southampton, SO30 2HH
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for an
outline application for the erection of no.2 detached dwellings and a double
garage for the existing dwelling at Holly Rise with access off Burnetts Lane
(considering access and layout only)

4

(b)

that the following appeals have been allowed:
Hedge End Retail Park, Tollbar Way, Hedge End, SO30 2UH
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant consent to undertake work to
trees protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO).

(c)

that the following appeals have been dismissed:
The Malthouse, Church Lane, Botley, SO30 2EJ
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission for a
change of use from warehouse to 3no. dwellings with single storey rear
extension, rear dormer windows, elevational alterations, car parking, and
amenity space following part demolition of existing building without
complying with a condition attached to planning permission Ref
F/20/87233, dated 12 June 2020.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 19 September 2022 at 7:00 pm
In the Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's
Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s
happening in the Borough. Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus
lots more.

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
1
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Monday, 7 March 2022 (7:00 pm – 8:22 pm)
PRESENT:
Councillor Garton (Chair); Councillors Asman, Corben, Gomer, House,
Kyrle, Pretty, Tennent and Kinloch
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allingham and Jurd
________________________________________
RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)
130.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor House declared a personal interest in item 8 as he lives near to
the application site. Councillor House confirmed that he will be speaking
as a member of the public and will then leave the meeting.
Councillor Gomer declared a prejudicial interest in item 9 as Citizen’s
Advice are a client of a business he has an interest in. Councillor Gomer
also declared that he is a Governor as St James School.

131.

MINUTES
RESOLVED That the Minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2021 be
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

132.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
A local resident spoke with regards to the lack of promised facilities on the
Boorley Park estate, in particular, the unfinished allotments. The Local
Area Manager was able to respond to the resident and explained that all
members of council staff and the Committee were frustrated with the lack
of progress. The legal transfer on the sports facility was progressing, but it
will take time for the allotments to be to a standard to progress so they can
be transferred. The Local Area Manager offered to meet with the resident
outside of the meeting to discuss the concerns further.
A second local resident spoke on behalf of ‘Friends of Wildern Local
Nature Reserve’ with regards to the expansion proposal of Wildern Local
Nature Reserve. The resident considered that Hedge End Town Council
financial resources should not be a reason for delay in delivery of this
project. The bike trail proposal at Telegraph Wood was also discussed
with the representative outlining factors for the Council to consider in the

7

2
assessment report. The Chair thanked the resident and advised that their
comments would be taken into consideration.
133.

CHAIR'S REPORT
Berry Theatre Gates
The Chair reported that the new gates in front of the Berry Theatre
entrance had been delivered by Eastleigh Borough Council as a public art
project. The Chair was pleased to see this project had been delivered, the
gates looked great and have enhanced the appearance of the entrance to
the theatre and the frontage of the site.
Berrywood Fields:
In February, the Chair visited the Berrywood Fields project and saw how
well the community grass pitches and landscaping were establishing.
While the pitches won’t be available for use until September as they need
time to establish fully, it’s clear that this will be a terrific facility for local
teams and residents with use of the changing facilities at Deer Park
School. The Chair took the opportunity to see the progress being made on
the Artificial Turf Pitch within the school playing fields. This was rapidly
taking shape and will also be an amazing facility for the school and the
community to use.
Itchen Valley Country Park:
The local country park continues to provide a much-valued space for
enjoyment, relaxation and adventure for its visitors. Following approval of
£3.3 million funding in July, work has been progressing on the exciting
range of improvements proposed for the Park and a planning application is
anticipated later this year. The Park’s staff continue to deliver an
interesting and wide range of events and, as Mayor, the Chair was
delighted that the Park will be hosting a ‘Wellies and Walkies’ event for her
chosen charity, Mountbatten Hampshire, on Saturday 2nd April.
Hatch Farm:
Eastleigh Borough Council and West End Parish Council are continuing to
progress the project to deliver a wheeled sports area at Hatch Farm.
Fearless Ramps have been appointed to design and deliver the equipment
and the final design consultation was being held with young people at The
Youthouse later that week. There is much excitement amongst keen
skaters and scooter-users to see this facility take shape.
HEWEB Annual Review:
As we reach the end of the financial year, the Chair was preparing the
HEWEB Annual Review for the forthcoming annual assemblies at the
Town and Parish Councils.

134.

LOCAL AREA MANAGER'S REPORT
The Committee considered a report by the Local Area Manager (Agenda
Item 6).

8

3

RESOLVED –
That the Committee:
(1) Note the progress to date on identified projects and priorities
during 2021/2022; and
(2) Approve the Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) Local
Area Action Plan Priorities 2022/23 shown in Appendix Two
for adoption and publication.

135.

PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES
A Planning Officer gave a short presentation on guidelines that had to be
taken into account when determining planning applications; in particular
the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account. This was set
against the broader policy framework.

136.

PLANNING APPLICATION - UNIT 3, LANKESTER HOUSE, 1
FREEGROUNDS ROAD, HEDGE END, SOUTHAMPTON, SO30 0HG
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning
and Economy (Agenda item 8) concerning an application for the variation
of condition 3 (opening hours) of planning permission J/17/80081 for prior
approval for change of use for A1 (retail) to A3 (restaurants and cafes).
(Ref:X/21/92160).
There were no updates reported.
RESOLVED That permission be granted subject to recommended conditions.
[NOTES: (A) Councillor House declared a personal interest in this
item as he lives near the site. Councillor House spoke as a member
of the public in objection to the application and left the meeting at
19:36. (B) Three people spoke in objection to the application citing
concerns of noise, odours, safety of school children due to increased
traffic, neighbouring businesses not opening at 8am, pollution and
the applicant’s potential future business model. (C) Five people,
including the applicants, spoke in support of the application stating
that other establishments were allowed to open prior to 8am, people
tend to use car parks around Hedge End which will have little impact
on the road in which the business is situated on, people want to
support local businesses and that odour will not be an issue as they
do not cook their foods in oils or fats.]

9

4

137.

COMMUNITY GRANTS
The Committee considered a report by the Assistant Local Area Manager
(Agenda Item 9).
RESOLVED That the Committee:
(1) Approves the grants as set out in Appendix 1 and 2 to the
report.
[NOTE: Councillor Gomer declared a non-pecuniary interest as he is
a Governor at St James School. Councillor Gomer also declared a
prejudicial interest as Citizen’s Advice were a client of a business
which he has an interest in. Councillor Gomer left the meeting at
20:18.]

138.

PLANNING APPEALS
The Legal Services Manager reported:(a)

that the following appeals had been lodged:Hedge End Retail Park, Tollbar Way, Hedge End, SO30 2UH
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to carry out works to protected
trees. (T/20/89128)
Land to the rear of Sovereign Drive and Precosa Road, Botley
Appeal against the Council’s refusal for residential development
comprising 106 no. dwellings, new access from Sovereign Drive,
associated landscaping and drainage works following demolition of
no. 47 Sovereign Drive and Hatts Copse House (net 104 no.
dwellings) (F/20/87625)

(b)

that the following appeals had been dismissed:11 Eden Road, West End, Southampton, SO18 3QW
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant consent to undertake
work to a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO).
(T/20/88029)
Land adjacent to 38 Oak Vale, West End. SO30 3SF
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant consent to

10

5
undertake work to a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order
(TPO). (T/20/88839)
RESOLVED That the report be noted.
M6871

11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee – 13 June 2022
Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

Recommendation:

F/22/92879
Summer Sharpe
12 April 2022
88 Hindmarch Crescent, Hedge End, Southampton, S030
0AP
Craig Yellott
Change of use of amenity land adjacent to 88 Hindmarch
Crescent to be used as domestic garden. Removal of
existing fencing, to erect 1m high railings. Retention of hard
surfaced extension to parking area.
Permit

CONDITIONS AND REASONS:

1. Within 3 months of the date of this decision the existing unauthorised
fencing shall be removed.
Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the visual amenities of the
streetscene.
2. The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from
the date of this decision.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.
3. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance
with the following plans numbered:
 Ownership Location Plan
 Proposed Fence Elevations
 Existing Fence Elevations
 Landscape & Planting Scheme
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking and
re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no development permitted
by Class E of Part 1, Schedule 2 of the Order shall be carried out without the
prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the visual amenities of the
streetscene.

13

Informatives:
1. In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(July 2021), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive approach to the
handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a
positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner.
1. Report:
2. This application has been referred to Committee by Councillors.
3. Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality
4. The application site comprises a two-storey semi-detached property located
to the west of Hindmarch Crescent. The dwellinghouse itself is finished in
facing brick work with white upvc fenestration and has an attached garage to
the northern elevation. The surrounding area is characterised by similar
residential dwellinghouses, thus resulting in a sense of uniformity.
5. The subject of this application relates to a triangular piece of land located to
the north of application site. Previously this was ‘scrubland’, with low level post
and rail fencing. To the east of this is informal on-street parking provisions,
denoted by grey brick work, contrasting with the tarmacked road.
6. Description of Application
7. Change of use of amenity land adjacent to 88 Hindmarch Crescent to be
used as domestic garden. Removal of existing fencing, to erect 1m high
railings. Retention of hard surfaced extension to parking area.
8. This application follows a previously refused planning application which
arose as a result of enforcement investigations. The previous application
sought retrospective permission to retain a section of hardstanding and 1.8m
close board fencing around a triangular plot of land, located to the north of the
application site. The fencing measured approx. 11m in length, located to the
immediate west of Hindmarch Crescent, alongside the on-street parking
provisions. Since the decision of the previous application the fencing has been
altered in terms of its height. Part of the fencing now measures approx. 1.8m
and the main expanse adjacent the on-street parking provisions of Hindmarch
Crescent measures approx. 1m in height.
9. This application seeks to remove the existing unlawful close board fencing
and replace this with black railings measuring 1m in height. This would
enclose the whole of the triangular piece of land to the north of 88 Hindmarch
Crescent. As well as this, the application proposes the change of use of land
and retention of hard surfaced area for parking provisions.
10. Relevant Planning History

14

11. Previous planning application referenced “F/21/91451” proposed
“Enclosure of amenity land adjacent to 88 Hindmarch Crescent and its use as
a domestic garden. Erection of 1.8m high close board fence between the
existing garage and existing boundary fence. Construction of hard surfaced
extension to parking area.” This was refused October 2021 with the reason for
refusal reading:
The fencing by reason of its height, siting and length; abutting the visitor
parking provisions fronting Hindmarch Crescent, results in a visually
oppressive and intrusive form of development, that is incongruous and
has an adverse impact upon the character of the surrounding
streetscene. The fencing is therefore contrary to Saved Policy 59.BE of
the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011), Draft Policy
DM1 of the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036),
Quality Places SPD (2011), and the contents of the National Planning
Policy Framework (2021).
11. Representations Received
12. 1no. comment has been received:
a) This plot appeared to be shown as open area when original planning
permission for the whole development was approved about 12 years
ago. I am not sure why this plot of land was not dealt with in the same
way as other open areas being accessible to all.
b) As it looked like it was to be open access area this maybe why there
are access manways to drainage systems and a main vent within the
plot (I think they relate to both main sewer and the underground stream
that are within this area).
c) There is also control equipment located at the North end of the plot.
d) My only concern is that approval of work may detrimentally effect these
key drainage system and that emergency access to the manways and
unground drainage system could be impeded. Consultation with bodies
that are responsible for foul water and storm water drainage may be
desirable.
13. The applicant has responded to this comment online accordingly:
a) The plot was included within the sale of the original property (please
see the ownership document within the planning application for
confirmation).
b) My understanding is that there are small chambers and drainage
pipework for an underground stream and local highway drainage within
the plot (there is no fowl sewer chambers within the plot). The highway
drainage is vented via the u-bended brown pipe. I also believe that the
underground stream system also encroaches into other properties
gardens along is route, so this is not unusual.
c) I have lifted all lids and can confirm that there is no electrical or
mechanical controls or mechanisms within any of the chambers / man
ways. The White box at the North end of the plot is a Virgin Media
connection cabinet. (Which will remain outside of any fencing and with
24/7 access if required).

15

d) There will continue to be no detrimental effects to the current drainage
and manways systems within the plot, ready access will be afforded to
anyone that requires access through an openable gate. I have
confirmed with site engineers that visited the chambers in the past that
letters will be sent to me if access is required in the future for
maintenance, and I have verbally agreed that in an emergency that
access is granted by any means necessary.
14. Consultation Responses
15. Eastleigh Borough Council Ecologist
16. I have no ecological objections to this application. It is an improvement on
the previous proposals in F/21/91451. The planting scheme lists shrubs such
as Berberis x stenophylla, Crataegus monogyna, Ilex aquifolium and
Pyracantha which have benefit to wildlife if they are managed so as to retain
their flowers to produce fruit and to retain their fruit throughout the winter. The
addition of flowering plants from the RHS plants for pollinators list will further
enhance the biodiversity of this plot. The railings proposed will allow free
passage of small mammals.
17. Hampshire County Council Highways
18. A highway adoption search indicates that no highway land has been
enclosed by the proposed fencing. Onwards, the fence itself does not impact
upon the visibility splays of Hindmarch Crescent, and the additional parking for
plot 88 will reduce the need for roadside parking to occur, whilst retaining the
adjacent visitor parking bays without impact. Therefore, no objection from a
highways perspective.
19. Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site



Within urban edge
Flood Zone 2 & 3

20 Development Plan Policies
21. Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036


Strategic policies:
S1 (Sustainable Development);






Development Management policies:
DM1 (General Development Criteria);
DM11 (Nature Conservation);
DM13 (Transport);
DM14 (Car Parking);

22. Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan

16

23. Policy 15 – Safeguarding of Mineral Resources.
24. Supplementary Planning Documents
-

Quality Places (November 2011);
Residential Parking Standards (January 2009);
Biodiversity (December 2009);

25. National Planning Policy Framework
26. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or
the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by statute)
applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise and
sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.
27. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic
(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing housing,
creating high quality environment with accessible local services); and
environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built and
historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken into
account, so that development responds to the different opportunities for
achieving sustainable development in different areas.
28. National Planning Practice Guidance
29. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the
consideration and determination of planning applications.
30. Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative
Background
31. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
32. The Development Plan comprises the Saved Policies of the Eastleigh
Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and the Hampshire Minerals and
Waste Plan 2013 (which is not applicable in this case). The NPPF and the
Planning Practice Guidance constitute material considerations of significant
weight.
33. Principle:

17

34. The application site falls within the urban edge, whereby alterations or
extensions to, or within the curtilage of residential dwellinghouses are
considered to be acceptable in principle, however, would be subject to the
following considerations.
35. Background
36. As noted above, previous planning application referenced F/21/91451
proposed 1.8m close board fencing enclosing the triangular plot of land
located to the north of 88 Hindmarch Crescent. This application was refused
on the basis of the adverse impact it had upon the streetscene.
37. Since the refusal of this application, the Applicant has sought to engage
with the Local Planning Authority, and has subsequently amended the
proposals accordingly, whereby the application now proposes 1m high black
railings.
38. It was noted that there were some concerns with regard to land ownership.
A review of the originally approved scheme (O/05/54780) denoted the
triangular piece of land to be amenity space, contributing towards the
landscaping plan. However, following discussions with Applicant it was
understood that the Applicant acquired this land when purchasing 88
Hindmarch Crescent. A Land Registry Plan has been submitted to support
this, thus confirming the ownership.
39. Design and Appearance:
40. Policy DM1 of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036) stipulates
that all new development should respect the character and appearance of
urban areas, take full and proper account of the context of the site including
the character, appearance and land uses of the locality or neighbouring,
and be compatible in terms of mass, scale, layout density, design and
siting.
41. The application proposes to remove the existing unlawful close board
fencing boundary treatment, and to replace this with black railings. As noted
above the existing fencing is currently unlawful and has been reduced in
height in part as a result of the refusal of F/21/91451. Therefore, its
complete removal is welcomed. A condition is recommended to be imposed
to ensure the existing fencing would be removed within a specified (3
month) timeframe. Its replacement with 1m high black railings is considered
to be an appropriate form of boundary treatment, given its low level,
permeability and its existing presence within the wider surroundings. This is
also supported within the Quality Places SPD.
42. The application also includes the change of use of amenity land to
private garden relating the residential unit of 88 Hindmarch Crescent.
Principally the change of use of land is considered to be acceptable, and
also in combination with the introduction of 1m high railings. It should be
noted that the Applicant does already own the land and therefore including

18

this formally within their residential curtilage is not unreasonable, however
given the prominence of the piece of land it is recommended that permitted
development rights be removed in relation to Schedule 2, Part 1, Class E of
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order
(England) 2015 (as amended) (GPDO).
43. Removing permitted development rights (in relation to Schedule 2, Part
1, Class E of the abovementioned Order) would mean that no outbuildings,
swimming pools, or containers could be sited within this land without formal
permission of the Local Planning Authority (LPA). This is considered to be
appropriate and proportionate, given that any building contained within the
piece of land would have an impact upon the streetscene, as a result of its
prominent location, and therefore details should be submitted to the LPA to
assess separately so that there can be suitable controls to maintain the key
qualities and characteristics of the Crescent.
44. The last element of the proposal relates to the retention of hard
standing which provides an additional off-street parking provision. This type
of development is considered to be characteristic of residential estates,
therefore this element of the proposal is also considered to be acceptable.
45. Overall and to conclude, the proposed 1m high black railings are
considered to be an appropriate form of boundary treatment. It is noted that
there are existing examples within the streetscene, and therefore the
proposal is considered to respect and blend with the existing boundary
treatments within the vicinity. The 3year timeframe for development to be
implemented is recommended to be imposed for the proposed fencing,
however it should be noted that there would not be an issue in planning
terms if there were no fencing around this piece of land. In terms of the
change of use of the land, whilst this is considered to be acceptable, it is
recommended that this be controlled and permitted development rights
relating to Schedule 2, Part 1, Class E of the GPDO be removed. The
retention of the hardstanding is considered to be acceptable given that this
type of development is generally characteristic of residential sites. The
proposals are therefore considered to be in accordance with the
abovementioned policy.
46. Residential Amenity:
47. Policy DM1 of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036) amongst
other matters, stipulates that all new development should not have an
unacceptable impact upon residential amenities of both new and existing
residents.
48. Due to the location and type of development, the physical structure of
the fencing, change of use of land and retention of hard standing is not
considered to have an adverse impact upon the amenities of the
neighbouring properties. As such, the proposal is considered to be
acceptable in this regard.

19

49. Highways Safety & Parking
50. Policy DM14 of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036) requires
residential development to provide off-highway parking which is adequate in
terms of highway safety / traffic management. The Residential Parking SPD
sets out that for a property of this size, that 2 no. off-street parking
provisions are required.
51. Due to the nature of the proposals, Highways have been consulted.
Highways advised that the fencing does not encroach upon highways land,
nor does the proposal impact upon the visibility splays of Hindmarch
Crescent.
52. In terms of parking, it is noted that the site previously benefitted from 2
no. off-street parking provisions in the form of a driveway and garage. This
application has increased the amount of parking, by creation of
hardstanding. The application has not extended the dropped kerb, with the
existing access remaining unchanged, therefore in theory, the on-street
parking provisions should not be adversely impacted upon.
53. Overall, in terms of highways safety and parking, Highways have raised
no objection, therefore the proposal is not considered to result in an
adverse impact and would therefore not warrant reason for refusal.
54. Climate Impact and Sustainability
55. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and
Environmental Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other this, to: (a)
put in place measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions
achieve carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim for all
projects and services delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon neutrality
by 2030; (c) ensure that the Councils procurement policy recognises carbon
neutrality as one of its primary considerations; and (d) recognise the
urgency of action to mitigate and adapt to climate change in every decision
taken by the Council. This is underpinned by the Climate and Environment
Emergency Strategy 2020-2030 and the supporting Climate and
Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020.
56. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero.
The NPPF and development plan do not set this as a specific target, but it
is a material consideration to be considered alongside all other material
considerations. In any case addressing climate change is a core part of the
NPPF and adopted plan policy. The need to support the economy is part of
the Strategic Environmental Assessment for the Local Plan, as is an
assessment of climate impacts.
57. The NPPF aims for the need for housing to be met, and policy S2 of the
Local Plan sets a target for 14,580 dwellings to be provided by 2036. The
NPPF, Policies S1, DM2, and DM3 of the Adopted Local Plan and energy

20

and water elements of the adopted Environmentally Sustainable
Development SPD require development to be sustainable in terms of
resource use, climate change and energy use. When considering the
impact of climate change, the proposed development is expected to be
resilient to the potential effects of climate change and is expected to limit
impacts on climate emissions as a result of the development or its use.
58. Equalities Implications:
59. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality
duty. Section149 states:- A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard
to the need to:
a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
60. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It is
considered that this application does not raise any equality implications.
61. Conclusion
62. The proposals are considered to be acceptable and are therefore
recommended for approval subject to conditions laid out above.

21

22

Agenda Item 9
Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee – 13 June 2022
Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

H/22/92946
Claire Campbell-Best
20 April 2022
8 Precosa Road
Miss K Fisher
Two storey side extension after removal of existing car port
(Re-submission)

Recommendation:

REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION

___________________________________________________________________
REASONS FOR REFUSAL:
1. The proposed development by reason of its siting and design would
result in a loss of space around the dwelling. It would create an
unattractive and incongruous feature, creating a staggered terraced
effect with the neighbouring property and gain an undue level of
prominence in the street scene. Overall, it would be detrimental to the
character and pattern of development within the locality. As such the
proposed development is contrary to Policy DM1 of the Eastleigh
Borough Local Plan [2016-2036] and the Council’s Quality Places SPD
and the NPPF.
2. In the absence of a certified bat survey to clarify whether bat roosts are
present, it is considered that insufficient evidence has been submitted
to prove bats are not present and that the development proposals could
have a harmful impact on Ecology. As such the proposal is contrary to
policy DM11 of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan [2016-2036]. In
addition, bats are a protected species and the proposal is also contrary
to the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2017) (as
amended).
3. The proposed development fails to provide adequate provision for on
site car parking which would encourage the parking of vehicles on the
public highway and so interrupt the free flow of traffic and cause a
hazard to road users. As such the proposal is contrary to policy DM14
of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan [2016-2036].
4. Note to Applicant: The application was refused following the
assessment of the following plans: LOC 01, Drawing 1 of 2 and
Drawing 2 of 2. In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National
Planning Policy Framework (February 2019). Eastleigh Borough
Council takes a positive approach to the handling of development
proposals so as to achieve, whenever possible, a positive outcome and
to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a timely manner.

23

Report:
1. This application has been referred to Committee at the request of
Councillor House, Councillor Kyrle and Councillor Kinloch.

Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality
2. The application site is a two-storey semi-detached chalet style
bungalow located on the north-western side of Precosa Road between
the junctions of Sovereign Drive and Sengana Road.
3. The dwelling itself is set back from Precosa Road with a front garden
and a paved driveway and has an existing car port to the side
(northeast) elevation, combined this amenity space can provide off-road
parking for 3no. vehicles. The dwellinghouse is constructed of brickwork
with a tiled, sloping roof with front and rear dormers inserted into the
roof space. To the north-west of the dwelling is pedestrian access to the
rear garden (accessed through the car port) which is enclosed with
close board fencing.
4. Precosa Road is within a well-established residential area with chalet
style bungalows, bungalows and two-storey semi-detached dwellings
near the application site. Further to the south of Precosa Road, there is
a mixture of detached, link detached and terraced housing.
5. Precosa Road is generally open and spacious with most dwellings set
back from the road with front amenity space and spacing between
dwellings.

Description of Application
6. The application proposes a two-storey side extension to extend the
property up to the side boundary shared with no. 6 Precosa Road. The
proposed extension would have a depth of approx. 8m and a width of
2.3m. The proposed two-storey extension would have a sloping pitched
roof with an extension to the front and rear dormers, the eaves height
would measure approx. 2.7m and have an overall height of 7.6m. The
proposal would be finished in materials to match the existing host
dwelling.

7. This application proposes an extension to the existing dropped kerb to
provide wider access in order to provide 2no. off-street vehicular
parking spaces. This would be subject to a Section 278 application with
Hampshire County Council.

24

Relevant Planning History
8. H/22/92793 – Two storey side extension after removal of existing car port –
Withdrawn – 05/04/2022

Representations Received
9. No representations received

Consultation Responses
10. EBC Ecology:

Due to the hanging tiles on the rear of the house some potential gaps in
the flashing and fascia, and the records of bat roosts nearby and the
work required to the roof, a preliminary bat roost assessment is
required.
11. Botley Parish Council:

No objections, subject to the following comments:
The proposed side extension is very close to the neighbouring property
and members were concerns that this will prevent rear access to and
from the garden.
12. Hampshire County Council Highways:

Holding objection – Hampshire Highways have requested
measurements of the length of the drive from the proposed
development to the highway edge (minimum length is 4.8m). It is
confirmed the length from the development to the highest and it’s
shortest length is approx. 4.3m and the longest length is 4.7m. This falls
below the minimum standard; Hampshire Highways have been notified
and an objection will be made.

Updated comments after clarification of driveway plan measurements:
Plans show that the in order to accommodate the side extension, the
building line comes forwards and effectively reduces the existing
parking space to 4.3m on its northern side. The minimum standard car

25

parking space is 4.8m, and so this is very likely to result in the parked
vehicle overhanging the footway causing an obstruction to
pedestrians and other footway users. This would not be permitted as
footways need to be clear of obstruction at all times.
As previously outlined, whilst there is potential for this issue to be
overcome through a slight setting back of the side extension, and also
movement of the second parking space which also appears to be below
standards (angling of the vehicle may assist with the second space),
plans fully showing adequate parking dimensions would be required for
the objection to be withdrawn.
Should permission be granted, the following conditions are requested:
CONDITIONS:
PARKING PROVISION
Before use of the development is commenced provision for parking
shall have been made within the site in accordance with the approved
plans and shall be retained thereafter.
Reason - To ensure adequate on-site car parking provision for the
approved development.
ACCESS CONSTRUCTION PROVISION
No development shall start on site until the access, including the
footway and/or verge crossing shall be constructed in accordance with
the approved plans.
Reason - To provide satisfactory access and in the interests of highway
safety.

Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site



Within Built-up Area Boundary
Within Established Residential Area

Development Local Plan Policies
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036:
Strategic policies:
 S1 (Sustainable Development);
 S2 (Promotion of New Development);
Development Management policies:
 DM1 (General Development Criteria);
 DM2 (Environmentally Sustainable Development);

26




DM11 (Nature Conservation);
DM14 (Car Parking);

Supplementary Planning Documents
-

Quality Places (November 2011);
Residential Parking Standards (January 2009);
Character Area Appraisals Hedge End, West End and Botley (January
2008)

National Planning Policy Framework
13. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’
or the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in
the determination of planning applications.

National Planning Practice Guidance
14. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the
consideration and determination of planning applications.

Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative
Background
15. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a
Local Planning Authority determining an application to do so in
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.
16. The Development Plan comprises the Policies of the Eastleigh Borough
Local Plan Review 2016-2036 and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste
Plan 2013 (which is not applicable in this case). The NPPF and the
Planning Practice Guidance constitute material considerations of
significant weight.

Principle:
17. The application site falls within the urban edge, whereby alterations or
extensions to, or within the curtilage of residential dwellinghouses are
considered to be acceptable in principle, however, would be subject to
the following considerations.

27

Design and Appearance:
18. The Council’s Quality Places SPD and Policy DM1 of the Local Plan
requires development to take full and proper account of the context of
the site including the character and appearance of the locality and be
appropriate in mass, scale, materials, layout, design and siting. It also
requires a high standard of landscape design, have a satisfactory
means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclist and pedestrians, make
provision for refuse and cycle storage and avoid unduly impacting on
neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook,
noise and fumes. The proposed extension would continue the existing
gable end roof with additional front and rear dormers, in line with the
existing dormers. The ridge line of the extending roof would be the
same height as the host dwelling and not subservient. The extension
would be, flush with the front elevation and would have a depth of
approximately 8 metres.
19. The proposed extension would allow reconfiguration of the of the first
floor accommodation and would provide additional space for a larger
third bedroom and the addition of a study/fourth bedroom. The ground
floor element, would not include any internal reconfiguration of the host
dwelling, there would be a store to the front, which would replace the
existing cart port and a covered area to the rear of the property.
20. The property lies in a prominent position on the street scene and is
positioned forwards of the neighbouring properties (Nos. 6 and 4
Precosa Road) to the north which are set back. The proposed twostorey extension would create a staggered terraced effect between the
host dwelling and the neighbouring semi-detached properties. As the
immediate area is predominately semi-detached properties, the
proposed development would change the street scene and cause harm
to the character and appearance of the locality.
21. The proposed two-storey side extension would infill the existing space
between the host and neighbouring properties resulting in a loss of
openness. This would result in an unwelcome and enclosing built form,
disrupting the sense of space around the buildings and would be
detrimental to the pattern of development with the locality.
22. It is acknowledged from the site visit and the Design and Access
Statement submitted with this application there are similar two storey
side extensions within the vicinity located at nos. 4 and 6 Precosa Road
and nos. 35 and 36 Sengana Road. It is, however, important to note
these developments retain the open space between dwellings and do
not cause detrimental harm within the street scene and create an
enclosed form of development in comparison to this proposal.
23. To conclude, the proposed two-storey extension by reason of its siting
and design would result in a loss of space and openness around the
dwelling. It would create an unattractive and incongruous feature,

28

resulting in a staggered terraced effect with the neighbouring property
and gain an undue level of prominence in the street scene. Overall, it
would be detrimental to the character and pattern of development within
the locality and contrary with Policy DM1 of the Eastleigh Borough
Local Plan, the Council’s Quality Places SPD, and the contents of the
NPPF.

Residential Amenity:
24. Policy DM1 of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036) stipulates
that proposed development should not have an unacceptable impact
upon residential amenities of both new and existing residents. The
proposed two-storey side extension side (north) elevation would be
sited tight to the shared boundary with no. 6 Precosa Road, there would
be no proposed windows to the north elevation and the proposal would
not result in any loss of privacy or overlooking.
25. It is considered that as result of the width of the proposed extension up
to the shared boundary with no. 6, the siting of the application property
which is positioned forwards in comparison to the neighbouring dwelling
and the infilling of the gap between the two dwellings would result in the
extension appearing overly dominant and give the impression of a
terraced development as noted.
26. In addition, it is important to consider the setting back of no. 6 Precosa
Road in relation to the application site and the proposed development.
The proposed two storey side extension would project approx. 2m
closer to the shared boundary of no.8 and 6. This would leave a small
gap between the dwellings of approx. 0.3m at ground level and there
are concerns this would prevent access to and from rear gardens. It is
acknowledged there is an existing car port in situ of where the proposed
extension would be located but this is considered to be a low-key and
modest in comparison to the proposed development.
27. The proposed extension would project a further 2.3m forward of the
principal elevation of no. 6 due to the existing staggered layout of the
dwellings in the street scene. This projection would be especially
prominent when travelling south along Precosa Road, against no. 8 and
would therefore have an overbearing effect.
28. As a result, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy DM1 of
the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036) and the Council’s
Quality Places SPD.

29

Access, Parking and Transport Matters:
29. Policy DM14 of the Eastleigh Borough Council Local Plan (2016-2036)
requires residential development to provide off-highway parking which
is adequate in terms of highway safety/traffic management. The
Residential Parking SPD sets out the relevant parking provisions for
dwellinghouses, which are dependent on the number of bedrooms.
30. The proposal will increase the bedrooms within the property from 3 to 4
as a result, this will increase the required car parking spaces from 2no.
to 3no. spaces as per the Residential Parking Standards SPD for 4+
bedroom properties. The property would lose some existing parking
provision through the loss of the existing car port; however, it is noted
the existing car port does not meet the current standard sizing for
garages/carports.
31. The Proposed Elevations and Floor Plans (Drawing 1 of 2) submitted
show provisions have been made to use the grassed area in the front
garden as an additional parking space alongside the paved driveway,
providing a total of only 2no. parking spaces. There is some on street,
unallocated parking provision in the locality.
32. The application also seeks the extension of the existing dropped kerb to
provide wider access to the south in order to provide the proposed
additional parking. As a result, Hampshire Highways were consulted to
seek advice on the proposed widening of the dropped kerb and to
ensure the proposed 2no. parking spaces met the minimum standard
car parking space.
33. Hampshire Highways have made an objection to the proposals on
highway safety grounds. Plans show in order to accommodate the side
extension, the building line projects forwards and effectively reduces
the existing parking space located on the front paved driveway to 4.3m
on the northern side of the site. The minimum standard car parking
length required is 4.8m and this is very likely to result in the parked
vehicle overhanging the footway causing an obstruction to pedestrians
and other footways users. This would not be permitted as footways
need to be clear of obstruction at all times.
34. Hampshire Highways have advised there is potential for this issue to be
overcome through a slight setting back of the side extension and also
movement of the second parking space as this is also below the
minimum standard (angling of the vehicle may assist with the second
space). Plans fully showing adequate parking dimension would be
required of a least 2no. parking spaces for the objection to be
withdrawn.
35. Hampshire Highways have also advised a separate permission for the
extension of the dropped kerb would be required from them as the
Local Authority Highway to undertake the dropped kerns works.

30

36. As a result of Hampshire County Council’s objection and the current
parking provisions proposed is considered to be contrary to Policy
DM14 of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036) and the
Council’s Quality Places SPD.

Ecology:
37. Policy DM11 of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-2036) stipulate
that the Borough Council will work with statutory and voluntary agencies
and developers to; protect, conserve and enhance areas subject to
international, national and local nature conservation designations, and
promote the net gain of biodiversity on all sites through the protection,
enhancement and connection of existing provisions and new habitats
and features compatible with the native biodiversity characters of the
Borough.
38. The Council’s Ecologist has been consulted as part of this application
and requested site photos of the roof where the proposed development
would be sited. They noted due to the hanging tiles on the rear of the
house, some potential gaps in the flashing and fascia and the records
of bat roosts nearby and the works to the roof proposed, a preliminary
bat roost assessment is required prior to determination.
39. The applicant has advised they do not feel a preliminary bat roost
assessment is required as they have not seen any evidence of bats
within their property. They have confirmed if bats are found during the
demolition or construction, all work would stop and Natural England
would be informed.
40. In the absence of a certified bat survey to clarify whether bat roosts are
present it is considered that insufficient evidence has been submitted
and that the development proposals could have a harmful impact on
ecology, contrary to policy DM11 of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan
(2016-2036). Bats are a protected species and the lack of a preliminary
bat assessment shows the applicant has not demonstrated compliance
with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2017) (as
amended).

Sustainability Measures and Climate Change:
41. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and
Environmental Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things,
to: (a) put in place measures to ensure the Council’s own operations
and functions achieve carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners
to aim for all projects and services delivered in the Borough to achieve
carbon neutrality by 2030; (c) ensure that the Council’s procurement
policy recognises carbon neutrality as one of its primary considerations;
and (d) recognise the urgency of action to mitigate and adapt to climate

31

change in every decision taken by the Council. This is underpinned by
the Climate and Environment Emergency Strategy 2020–2030 and the
supporting Climate and Environmental Emergency Action Plan –
Update June 2020.
42. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net
zero. The NPPF, development plan and emerging plan policy do not set
this as a specific target, but it is a material consideration to be
considered alongside all other material considerations. In any case
addressing climate change is a core part of the NPPF and emerging
plan policy. The need to support the economy is part of the Strategic
Environmental Assessment for the adopted Local Plan, as is an
assessment of climate impacts.
43. The NPPF, Policies S1, DM2 and DM3 of the Local Plan and energy
and water elements of the adopted Environmentally Sustainable
Development SPD require development to be sustainable in terms of
resource use, climate change and energy use. When considering the
impact of climate change, the proposed development is expected to be
resilient to the potential effects of climate change.

Equalities Implications:

44. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality
duty.
45. Section149 states:

A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard
to the need to:
- eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
- advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
- foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

46. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups.
It is considered that this application does not raise any equality
implications.

32

Conclusion
47. The proposed two-storey side extension would create a staggered
terraced effect and would be detrimental to the character and pattern of
development within the locality.
48. The proposed two-storey side extension would infill the open space at
the side of the property with an unwelcome and enclosing built form
disrupting the sense of space around the building and the neighbouring
property no. 6 Precosa Road.

49. A preliminary bat assessment has not been submitted as part of the
application contrary to the EBC Ecologist’s advice and thus does not
demonstrate compliance with the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations (2017) (as amended).
50. The recommendation is to Refuse the scheme

33

34

Agenda Item 10
HEWEB – Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee Monday 13 June 2022.

Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

Recommendation:

F/22/92889
Clare Martin
Thursday 14 April 2022
ITCHEN VALLEY COUNTRY PARK, ALLINGTON LANE,
WEST END
Eastleigh Borough Council
Provision of new visitor facilities comprising the creation of
tented events space at Highwood Barn Hub, Remodelling of
Highwood and Kingfisher barns, Reprovision of play
equipment at existing play areas, addition of 1no. modular
visitor building at High Hill Field, Provision of new parking
area, Rewilding of existing parking bays on north west side
of access road, installation of cess pits, alterations to access
roads and footpaths and associated hard and soft
landscaping and ancillary structures.
Subject to:
i) Submission of infiltration testing information for
the sustainable drainage system to allow the
council to complete the habitat regulation
assessment.
ii) The receipt and consideration of Natural
England’s comments on the council’s habitat
regulation assessment.
iii) Submission of a bat mitigation strategy and the
receipt and consideration of the Ecology Officer’s
comments.
iv) Submission of an air quality impact assessment
and a noise impact assessment and receipt and
consideration of the Environmental Health
Officers comments.
v) The imposition of any necessary additional or
amended conditions including updated list of
amended plans.
To Delegate back to the Executive Head of Housing and
Economy in conjunction with the Chair, Vice Chair and
Local Ward Councillors to GRANT PLANNING
PERMISSION subject to the following conditions:

35

CONDITIONS AND REASONS

36

1

The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with
the following plans numbered: IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-1000, IVCP-RHP-01XX-DR-A-1001 Rev0, IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-1002 Rev0, IVCP-RHP-01-XXDR-A-1010 Rev0, IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-1011, IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-1012
Rev0, IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-1015, ICVP-RHP-HB-XX-DR-A- P S0 P0377
1100 Rev P, ICVP-RHP-HB-XX-DR-A- 1101 RevP, ICVP-RHP-HB-XX-DR 1102
Rev P, ICVP-RHP-KB-XX-DR- P P0377 1110 RevP, IVCP-RHPKB_XX_DR_A1111 Rev P, IVCP-RHP-KB-XX-DR-1112 Rev P, ICVP-RHP-HBXX-DR-A-2100 Rev P, ICVP-RHP-HB-XX-DR-2101 Rev P, ICVP-RHP-HB-XXDR-2102 Rev P, ICVP-RHP-KB-XX-DR-A-2110 Rev P, ICVP-RHP-KB-XX-DR2111 Rev P, ICVP-RHP-KB-XX-DR 2112 Rev P, IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-2120
Rev0, IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-2121, IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-2122 Rev0,
IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-2123, IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-2130, LLD2475-ARBDWG-001 Rev 02, LLD2475-LAN-REP-002-00, LLD2475-ARB-DWG-004 Rev
02, LLD2475-ARB-DWG-005 Rev 02, LLD2475-ARB-DWG-006 Rev 01,
LLD2475-ARB-DWG-007 Rev 01, LLD2475-ARB-DWG-008 Rev 01, LLD2475ARB-DWG-009 Rev 01, LLD2475-LAN-DWG-010-00, LLD2475-ARB-DWG-010
Rev 01, LLD2475-LAN-DWG-011-00 Rev 01, LLD2475-LAN-DWG-012 Rev 01,
LLD2475-LAN-DWG-100-00, LLD2475-LAN-DWG-101-00, LLD2475-LANDWG-110-00 & LLD2475-LAN-DWG-111-00
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved
documents and all recommended measures shall be in place before the
development is brought into use:
 Landscaping Design Strategy by Lizard Landscape Design and Ecology,
dated 12/4/22 (referenced LLD2475-LAN-REP-001)
 Landscape and Visual Appraisal by by Lizard Landscape Design and
Ecology, dated 12/4/22 (referenced LLD2475-LPL-REP-001)
 Ecological Impact Assessment by Lizard Landscape Design and
Ecology, dated 12/4/22 (referenced LLD2475-ECO-REP-002-00-EcIA
Rev01)
 Biodiversity Net Gain Report by Lizard Landscape Design and Ecology,
dated 4/5/22 (referenced LLD2475 Rev00)
 Shadow Regulations Assessment by Lizard Landscape Design and
Ecology, dated 16th May 2022 (referenced LLD2475-ECO-REP-004)
 Arboricultural Impact Assessment by by Lizard Landscape Design and
Ecology, dated 12/4/22 (referenced LLD2475-ARB-REP-002 Rev01)
 Transport Assessment by Whitby Wood, dated 13/4/22 (referenced
12563361 Rev01)
 Flood Risk Assessment by Whitby Wood, dated 21/1/22
(referenced P450815-WW-XX-XX-RP-C-0001)
 Flood Warning and Evacuation Plan by Whitby Wood, dated
18/3/22 (referenced P450815-WW-XX-XX-RP-C-0002)
 Drainage Strategy by Whitby Wood, dated 21/1/22 (referenced P450815WW-XX-XX-RP-C-0003)
 Sustainability Statement by Selta Green Environmental Design, dated

11/4/22 (referenced S2 P02)
 Cesspit Specifications by New Hade Pumps (quote P-150301A)
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3

The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the
date of this decision.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

4

No excavation, demolition or development related works shall take place on site
until an arboricultural monitoring statement proposal, detailing supervision
activity and inspections of tree protection measures, has been submitted and
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The approved arboricultural
monitoring statement proposal must be adhered to in full, and may only be
modified subject to written agreement from the Local Planning Authority. This
condition may only be fully discharged upon completion of the proposed
development, subject to submission of monitoring reports.
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part of
the amenity of the locality.

5

The development must accord with the arboricultural report reference LLD2475ARB-REP-002. No excavation, demolition or development related works shall
commence until the tree protection measures have been installed as per the
tree retention and protection plans. Once installed, no access by vehicles or
placement of goods, chemicals, fuels, soil or other materials shall take place
within the protected area. Tree protection measures shall be retained in their
approved form for the duration of the work and may only be modified subject to
written agreement from the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To retain and protect the existing trees which form an important part of
the amenity of the locality.

6

No site clearance, demolition or construction work shall start until a Method
Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority. The development thereafter shall only take place in
accordance with the approved method statement which shall include:
(a) The phasing of the works;
(b) The protection of onsite and offsite ecological interests including maintaining
water quality;
(c) The arrangements for deliveries associated with construction works;
(e) Location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction material,
plant storage areas and contractor parking;
(f) Protection of pedestrian routes during construction;
(g) Details of the methodology for dealing with construction dust;
(h) Details of the methodology for ensuring dirt is not transferred onto the
highway from the site (i.e. wheel washers), and onwards mitigation should this
fail, (such as the
employment of mechanical road sweepers).
(i) Hours of work
Reason: To limit the impact of the development during the demolition and
construction works.

37

38

7

No development shall start until a biodiversity mitigation and enhancement plan,
which provides detail of the planting management and monitoring of the
biodiversity uplift to the site. The biodiversity mitigation and enhancement plan
should be based upon the ecological mitigation and enhancements detailed
within the Ecological Impact Assessment, Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment &
Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To protect and enhance biodiversity.

8

No development shall start until a detailed landscaping scheme has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
landscaping scheme shall cover the specifications for all hard & soft
landscaping together with a landscape planting, maintenance and management
plan. The hard landscaping shall be in place before the development is brought
into use and the soft landscaping shall be planted before the end of the first
planting season following completion of the development. The works shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details and to the appropriate
British Standard.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to safeguard
the amenities of neighbouring residents.

9

For a period of no less than 5 years after planting, any trees or plants which are
removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as
soon as is reasonably practicable with others of the same species, size and
number as originally approved in the landscaping scheme.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities and biodiversity value of the site
and its surroundings.

10

The modular building at High Hill Field shall not be brought onto site, until
details and samples of the materials to be used in the external surfaces of the
modular building have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the
amenities of the area.

11

No external lighting shall be installed in relation to the development hereby
permitted until lighting details have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then accord with the
approved details.
Reasons: In the interest of amenity and ecology.

12

The development shall not be brought into use until a detailed surface water
drainage scheme for new impermeable areas and roofs at the site, based on
the principles within the Drainage Strategy Report ref: P450815-WW-XX-XXRP-C-0003, has been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The submitted details should include:
a. A technical summary highlighting any changes to the design from that within
the approved Drainage Strategy Report.

b. Infiltration test results undertaken in accordance with BRE365 and providing
a representative assessment of those locations where infiltration features are
proposed for new impermeable areas and roofs.
c. Detailed drainage plans to include type, layout and dimensions of drainage
features for new impermeable areas and roofs including references to link to the
drainage calculations.
d. Detailed drainage calculations for new impermeable areas and roofs to
demonstrate there is sufficient attenuation for storm events up to and including
1:100 + climate change.
The development shall then accord with the approved details.
Reasons: To ensure a sustainable drainage system has been provided.
13

The approved development at the Highwood Barn Hub shall not be brought into
use until an outline events management plan has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This includes events to be
held at the pop up market square and events space (as shown on the approved
site plan IVCP-RHP-01-XX-DR-A-1011Rev0).
Reason: In the interest of protecting residential amenity and to ensure that the
main role of the site is predominantly for nature based activities.
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (July 2021), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a
timely manner.

______________________________________________________________
Report:
This application has been referred to Committee as the site is owned and
managed by Eastleigh Borough Council.
Characteristics of Site and Locality
1. Itchen Valley Country Park covers 182 hectares of mixed landscapes
including ancient woodland and open fields as well as wetlands, water
meadows and pastures next to the banks of the River Itchen. Itchen Valley
Country Park provides an opportunity for people to explore nature and
partake in a range of leisure and recreational pursuits within the confines of
a managed country park. The park offers various walking/ cycling trails,
recreational fields, two play areas, Go-Ape, a cafe, picnic areas, visitor
facilities and car parking.
2. Itchen Valley Country Park is located within an area of countryside, close
to the northern side of West End and is accessed off Allington Lane. To the
south is a row of dwellings, which back onto the country park.

39

Background to the Application
3. Itchen Valley Country Park is a popular visitor attraction, with the visitor
numbers increasing by 77,000 over the past five years, which represents a
35% increase. This trend is expected to continue with predicted population
growth within both the borough and wider area. As a result, of the
increased visitor numbers the site is showing significant signs of wear and
tear, with play equipment, footpaths and carpark surfaces all nearing, or at
the end of, their life span.
4. It is recognised that Itchen Valley Country Park is in need of significant
investment. However, rather than just replacing the existing equipment as
necessary, the council has drawn up a more comprehensive scheme to
tackle some of the existing layout issues and lack of facilities at the county
park and thus improve overall visitor experience and increase dwell times.
Itchen Valley County Park Improvement Scheme
5. Under the proposed scheme, a new car parking area will be created at the
front of the site (to the south of Highwood Barn Hub). This will reduce the
number of vehicles that go through the central part of the park, providing
better separation between pedestrians and vehicles, which in turn will
create a more relaxing atmosphere for visitors. The existing car parks, on
the western side of the access road, are to be rewilded in native woodland
grasses and ferns and thus increase the biodiversity value of the site.
6. A new footpath will take visitors from the proposed car park to Highwood
Barn hub, which will provide a clear arrival point for visitors with easy
access to the existing café, play area, seating and toilets and onwards to
the trails within the park. The area at Highwood Barn will be upgraded and
rearranged to provide a formal meeting/ events space and allow for a more
flexible use. To accommodate this, the position of the play area is being
moved slightly/ extended and new equipment is proposed. The internal
layout of Highwood Barn and Kingfisher Barn will be reworked to provide
better public welfare facilities and additional office/ storage space for staff.
7. At High Hill Field (the far end of the park) a modular building will provide
public toilets and a kiosk offering light refreshments. This is partially
important to people using the recreation space, Go Ape and the
surrounding woodlands, who currently have to walk 400m to use the
facilities at the other end of the site. The modular building will also contain
a function room for public hire, which replaces the existing function room at
Kingfisher barn.
8. The work at High Hill Fields also includes the replacement of the play
equipment in the play area, which will be extended to incorporate a small
orchard and picnic area at the far end. Finally, the scheme also includes
new footpaths, such as the memorial walk, extensive landscape and new
sustainable drainage features.

40

Planning Application
9. The planning application encompasses the following elements:
10. Car Park
A new 147 space car park is to be constructed to the south of the
Highwood Barn Hub, to the west of the access road. This includes seven
disabled parking bays, four family parking bays, eight electric vehicle
charging points, nine motorbike parking bays and covered cycle parking.
The car parking spaces are located within three interconnected areas off
the main access road and broken up with landscaping. To the west of the
car parking area is the new pathway leading to Highwood Barn Hub, which
will be lit by low level bollard lighting.
11. Highwood Barn Hub
The reconfiguring of the existing area in front of Highwood Barn will create
a formal gathering and events space, with a temporary covered textile
canopy measuring 10.5m by 15m. The current private access to the water
meadows will be rerouted around the edge of the Highwood Barn Hub
(currently this goes through the middle of the visitor area).
12. Highwood Barn Hub is one of the key locations within the park that will hold
events such as open aircraft markets, talks, music, family performances,
outdoor films and stand-up comedy. The events space incorporates the
area to the west of Highwood Barn (where the proposed temporary seating
arrangement is shown on the proposed site plans). These events will
usually run for part of the day or evening up until dusk (10pm in the
summer) and could be up to three times per month in peak season and
less in low season. The larger events will be able to accommodate no more
than 150-200 people due to the size of the area.
13. Replacement Play Area at Highwood Barn Hub
This fenced play area is aimed at families with smaller children involving
themed play, storytelling and imaginative role playing. Proposed play
elements are to include timber climbing structure, swings (double and baby
swing), stepping logs, rope net, bridge, springers, and wigwam.
14. Kingfisher Barn
The external alterations to Kingfisher Barn involve the addition of new rear
windows, office and W.C. doors and louvred opening for the plant.
15. Welcome Building at High Hill Field
The timber frame modular building is located at the entrance to High Hill
Fields and consists of two pitched roof wings connected by a central
entrance feature. The first wing contains the café, store and toilet facilities
and the other contains a larger 64m2 function room.
16. Replacement Playground at High Hill Field
This fenced play area is aimed at older children, whilst providing natural
and informal elements inclusive for all ages. The play area is to include

41

adventure trail, climbing structures with ropes, bridges, slides, play bridge,
mounds and net climbing structure.
17. Cesspits
New cesspits are proposed for both the welcome building at High Hill Field
site and as a replacement for the existing cess pit serving the Highwood
Barn and Kingfisher Barn. For Highwood Barn the cesspit will be placed
under neath the existing car parks to the west of the access track, which
are to be rewilded.
Permitted Development
18. The wider program of work at Itchen Valley Country Park incorporates new
pathways (including creation of a memorial walk), internal remodelling of
Highwood Barn and Kingfisher Barn’s, the picnic area and orchard at High
Hill Fields, repairs and extensions to existing trails, car park rewilding,
installation of a pay at exit car parking system (with automatic number plate
recognition); BBQ equipment renewal, tree management works, way
finding signage, and small ancillary structures or buildings under 200 cubic
metres (such as cycle storage). These minor works fall within the council’s
permitted development rights and so are outside of the scope of the
planning application.
Screening
19. Under the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2017, an EIA screening opinion is not
required for the proposal, as the type of development proposed does not
fall within schedule 1 or schedule 2.
20. Under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as
amended) a habitat regulation assessment is necessary for the
development as the site is adjacent to the River Itchen SAC and SSSI.
21. A shadow habitat regulations assessment has been submitted by the
agent which details mitigation to ensure that the proposal will not have a
likely significant impact on the protected site. In addition to this, the
Local Planning Authority has requested infiltration testing be carried out
to demonstrate that the sustainable drainage system is achievable and
ensure that the water quality of the River Itchen will not be adversely
affected by the development.
22. On receipt of this information the Local Planning Authority will undertake
its own habitat regulation assessment, in consultation Natural England,

42

Supporting Information
23. The application is accompanied by the following reports and technical
assessments:











Design and Access Statement
Transport Assessment
Sustainability Statement
Landscape Design Strategy
Landscape and Visual Appraisal
Ecological Impact Assessment
Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement
Tree Retention and Protection Proposal
Biodiversity Net Gain Statement
Shadow Habitat Regulations Assessment

Relevant Planning History
Reference:

Description:

Decision:

F/18/82351

Alterations and additions to fenestration in
front and rear elevations of Highwood Barn;
addition of vent to front roof elevation; and
erection of covered shelter to the west of the
main building.

Permitted
(Mar 2018)

F/15/77227

Construction of high wire tree top junior
course in association with existing operation
and extension of car park

Permitted
(Nov 2015)

F/13/73749

Replacement and relocation of reception
cabin with associated decking and installation
of a packaged pump system and associated
pipework to connect to existing cesspool

Permitted
(Sep 2014)

F/10/67638

Installation of play equipment

F/09/66053

Construction of high wire adventure course,
cabin and shelter, 4no. Stockades, provision
and surfacing of 2no. Car parks and felling of
11no. Trees

Permitted
(Sep 2010)
Permitted
(Jul 2010)

F/07/59860

Excavation of new dipping pond and
construction of wooden platform and
formation of new access path.

Permitted
(Jun 2007)

F/06/56914

Erection of amenity building containing toilets,
changing room, Rangers room, kitchen and
classroom, re-siting of existing play area and
felling of trees
Outline: Erection of interpretation/ visitor
centre and car parking
Construction of six car parking areas

Permitted
(Jun 2006)

Z/30618/001
Z/30618

Consented
(Nov 1988)
Consented

43

(Nov 1988)
Representations Received (Summarised)
24. 1 comment letter stating that some areas of the park should be kept off
limits for wildlife. Also requesting upgrades to local cycle routes.
Consultation Responses
Landscape Officer – No objection
25. Subject to conditions securing hard and soft landscaping details, a
landscape maintenance and management plan and to replace any failed
tree planting for the first 5 years.
26. I agree with the conclusions of the submitted Landscape & Visual
Appraisal, that the visual impact on wider views of the proposed
improvements, including the new parking areas, will be limited as the site is
well enclosed by topography and existing vegetation. However, there will
be some visual impact on internal views for visitors to the country park. As
such, the existing and proposed main parking areas should be screened
and softened as much as possible to avoid any adverse impact on the
character of the country park. The consultation response goes on to
provide detailed advice on planting, surfacing, and creating shade within
the development.
Tree Officer – No objection
27. Subject to conditions requiring the installation of tree protections measures
(as outlined within the arboricultural report) and the submission of an
arboricultural monitoring statement.
Environmental Health - Additional information required.
28. The pollution climate in this area is influenced by road traffic on the M27
motorway and Allington Lane. Dwellings located alongside the Country
Park access road and off Allington Lane currently receive noise levels in
the moderate to high range as averaged over a 16-hour daytime. Dwelling
holders close to the access road and junction may notice vehicles and
coaches bound to and departing the Country Park and an increase in
vehicles generated by the development. It is recommended that a noise
impact assessment, air quality assessment are submitted before issuing
the planning decision and construction environmental management plan is
secured via condition.
Ecology Officer – No Objection
29. Subject to a detailed bat mitigation strategy being agreed before issuing
the planning decision, and conditions securing a biodiversity mitigation and
enhancement plan and construction environmental management plan.

44

30. Impact of the proposal on the Itchen SAC/SSSI
31. Of primary concern from an ecological point of view would be indirect
impacts during both construction and operation on the River Itchen
SAC/SSSI. A shadow HRA has been submitted, which indicates that
appropriate mitigation can be provided to prevent a likely significant impact
on the SAC/ SSSI. Infiltration testing information is required to ensure that
infiltration can be achieved on site for the sustainable drainage system,
otherwise alternative methods will need to be considered.
32. Habitats
33. The primary loss of habitat will be a substantial area of grassland in order
to form the new carpark. There will also be other minor losses of grassland
in places to form new paths and alterations to existing facilities. In
ecological terms, the loss of these areas of grassland and the minor works
to areas of the woodland are not considered significant, and will be
compensated for through an enhancement plan.
34. Biodiversity Net Gain
35. Taking into account the proposals for various elements of habitat creation
(including grassland creation/enhancement, SuDS features, woodland
creation in areas of existing carpark) the scheme is predicted to deliver
29.7 habitat units which represents a c.12% uplift post construction. The
hedge retention and creation is predicted to lead to the creation of 3.04
units which is a 54% uplift for hedgerows. This calculation relies on the
new hedgerows around the proposed carpark reaching “moderate” quality.
Given that they will be located in and around a carpark and are likely to be
heavily managed this may be an optimistic “best case” scenario. Even
taking this into account and reducing the quality to low, the proposals are
still likely to deliver a gain in hedgerow units which would be policy
compliant.
HCC Highway Officer – No objection
36. Subject to a construction method statement condition







The access to and from Itchen Valley Country Park site is unchanged
by the proposals and has adequate visibility splays The Transport
Assessment indicates that the Allington Lane junction has spare
capacity for the additional vehicle flows anticipated by the development.
The ANPR parking system will ensure that vehicles do not have to wait
at the barrier and so there will not be queuing back onto the highway.
It is understood that a short term period of free parking time will be
allowed for on site in order to accommodate drop-off's and pick-up's to
reduce the potential of vehicles parking out on Allington lane to avoid
short term charges.
The car park will result in an increase of 103 vehicle parking spaces
(from 327 to 430 spaces). The car parking layout of this is acceptable
with adequate 6.0m aisle widths for ease of turning in and out of
parking spaces, and for two way circulation.

45





32 cycle spaces are provided and the applicant intends to undertake
regular cycle parking reviews, and increasing numbers if required,
which is welcomed.
Pedestrian routes to and from the new parking area to the south of the
site are also well connected and provided for to enable safe pedestrian
movement between the parking and the wider facilities of the site.
Servicing of the site is outlined within the Transport Statement, with
associated vehicle tracking diagrams provided to demonstrate how this
will be achievable. This is accepted.

HCC Flood and Water Management – No objection, subject to drainage
condition
37. We are satisfied that the proposed new permeable surfaces along with
accompanying swales and basins will be appropriate for this development,
as these areas would be ‘self-draining’ and are likely to provide betterment.
These features should not require lining.
38. A condition is required to provide more detailed calculations for the
proposed new impermeable areas including hard standings and roofs,
supported by infiltration testing results so that associated infiltration
structures are sized appropriately. We are satisfied that there is sufficient
available space for amendments to the drainage design, and that water
quality management provided by the drainage system will be appropriate.
39. Hedge End Parish Council – No response provided.
40. HCC Minerals and Waste - No response provided
41. HCC Access Development Officer - No response provided
Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site







Outside Urban Edge - Countryside
Within Settlement Gap
Within Ancient Woodland
Within Site of Interest for Nature Conservation
Adjacent to Special Area of Conservation
Mineral Safeguarding Site

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016-20136):
42. Strategic policies:






46

S1 (Sustainable Development);
S2 (Promotion of New Development);
S5 (New Development Within the Countryside);
S6 (Protection of Settlement Gaps);
S9 (Green Infrastructure);



12 (Transport Infrastructure).

43. Development Management policies:











DM1 (General Development Criteria);
DM3 (Adapting to Climate Change);
DM6 (Sustainable Surface Water Management and Watercourse
Management);
DM11 (Nature Conservation);
DM13 (Transport);
DM14 (Car Parking);
DM32 (Protection of Recreation and Open Space Facilities);
DM34 (New & Enhanced Recreation and Open Space Facilities);
DM40 (Funding Infrastructure).

Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan
44. Policy 15 – Safeguarding of Mineral Resources.
Supplementary Planning Documents




Quality Places (November 2011);
Biodiversity (December 2009);
Trees and Development (April 2022).

National Planning Policy Framework
45. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or
the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by
statute) applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in favour of
sustainable development unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.
46. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic
(supporting economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing
housing, creating high quality environment with accessible local services);
and environmental (contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built
and historic environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken
into account, so that development responds to the different opportunities
for achieving sustainable development in different areas.

47

National Planning Practice Guidance
47. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the
consideration and determination of planning applications.
Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative
Background
48. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
The Development Plan comprises the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 20162036 and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013. The NPPF and
the Planning Practice Guidance constitute material considerations of
significant weight.
Principle, Countryside and Settlement Gap:
49. The planning application is to replace and improve the current visitor
facilities at Itchen Valley Country Park, which is an established recreational
use. As such the principle of development accords with Policies S5 &
DM32, which allows development relating to outdoor recreation uses within
the countryside.
50. Part of Itchen Valley Country Park is also within the settlement gap, which
separates Southampton, West End and Eastleigh. The settlement gap
encompasses the whole of the open field to the west of the access road,
with the gap stretching from Allington Lane to Kingfisher Barn.
51. Policy S6 allows new development within the settlement gap, providing
they do not undermine the physical extent or visual separation of
settlements; and they do not have an urbanising effect detrimental to either
the character of the countryside or separate identities of adjoining
settlements.
52. In terms of the planning application, the proposed work at the Highwood
Barn Hub and the new car park is within the settlement gap. The work to
create the Highwood Barn Hub is of a modest scale and will blend
amongst the existing barns and structures. The proposed play
equipment will replace and update equipment in the existing play area
and will not extend the site further into the gap. As such it is considered
that this element of the planning application will not have a detrimental
impact on the gap.
53. The largest change is the introduction of the new car parking area in the
open field to the front of Highwood Barn. The car parking area covers
roughly 135m by 50m (excluding landscaping) which marks a significant

48

portion of the field. Policy DM14 notes that proposals for car parking
within settlement gaps will only be acceptable in exceptional cases and
that the benefits of the proposal outweigh the adverse impacts.
54. In this case, the proposed car parking area is to support an existing
recreational use that has seen a 35% increase in visitor numbers over
the last five years. Currently there is insufficient parking during times of
high visitor demand, meaning that vehicles park along the access road
or High Hill field has to be opened up for overspill parking. This requires
the supervision of marshals, which is resource intensive, and negatively
impacts on visitor experience. As such a long term parking solution is
required.
55. Options for additional car parking outside, of the settlement gap, have
been fully considered but come with their own draw backs. One option is
to expand the existing High Hill Field car park, however this was
discounted by the Applicant as it would have resulted in the partial loss
of recreational green space, which is one of the key attractions of the
park and would also limit future events. The design and access
statement also identified other areas off the main access road for
parking, including knocking through the existing small central car
parking areas to make one large space. However, all of these options
would have resulted in extensive tree and vegetation clearance, which
would have been detrimental to the ancient woodlands, SINC and
biodiversity value of the site.
56. On this basis, it is considered that there is an exceptional case for
locating the car parking area within the gap in order to support the
running of the established and popular country park and to limit its
ecological impacts. Locating the car parking area at the front of the site
also has the benefit of keeping many vehicles outside of the main
recreational parts of the site. It will also create a well serviced and clear
entrance point at the renovated Highwood Barn Hub.
57. In terms of the car parks visual impact on the settlement gap, this is
fairly limited. While the car parking area covers a large section of the
open field (roughly a third), it is a low level structure and the land
topography and vegetation (including new landscaping) will effectively
screen views of the car park from outside of the site. As such the
proposal will not visually undermine the gap or be detrimental to the
appearance of its countryside surroundings.
58. In terms of the physical impact on the gap, the proposed car park will
reduce the size of the gap, but this is only a slight intrusion when
compared to the total area of the settlement gap. Furthermore, the car
park is on the very edge of the gap, a reasonable distance away from

49

the surrounding settlement and so will not undermine the separate
identities of adjoining settlements.
59. In conclusion, the car parking area is part of a comprehensive package
of improvement works at Itchen Valley Country Park. It has been shown
that locating the car parking area within the settlement gap is the only
reasonability viable solution and the overall the benefits of the
development would outweigh its limited impact on the settlement gap.
As such the proposal is considered acceptable in this regard.
Character and Appearance
60. Policy DM1 requires new development to take full and proper account of
the context of the site and be well integrated in terms of massing, scale,
materials, layout, design and siting both in itself and in relation to adjoining
buildings, spaces and views.
61. While the new car parking area will only have a limited impact on the
gap, it will completely change the internal views for arriving visitors when
they enter the country park.
62. Currently the western side of the access road is open allowing views
over the countryside at the approach to Highwood Barn. In contrast the
proposed car parking area will enclose the current views with native
hedge and tree planting. Along the western side is a shared pedestrian
cycleway leading to Highwood Barn and next to this is a row of
landscaped mounds containing trees, native shrubs and wildflower
grassland to integrate the car park into the surrounding landscape.
While this will result in a significant change to the approach to the park,
the enclosed parking areas will have a natural setting, which visitors
expect when they arrive at a country park.
63. At the other end of the park, the proposal includes the provision of a
single storey, modular building at the entrance to High Hill Fields. This
building is necessary as it provides a small drinks/ food outlet and
welfare facilities, which are lacking in this end of the country park. The
building uses wooden cladding to fit in with its countryside surroundings
and is of an interesting design that is well articulated. It has also been
carefully positioned so that it is easily accessible for customers but does
not block access or views onto the recreational field.
64. The remainder of the work is relatively modest in scale and in keeping
with the existing buildings and structures. The Highwood Barn Hub will
be upgraded and includes a tented structure over the new events space,
which provides shade and is removable as necessary. Other structures,
such as the replacement play equipment, are designed to improve upon

50

the existing facilities that are reaching the end of their life and play
equipment and materials are in keeping with the country park setting.
65. Overall, the scale, massing, siting and design of the proposed development
is considered appropriate for the recreational facility at Itchen Valley
Country Park and will not involve structures or activities that would detract
from the rural character of the countryside.
Trees and Ecology:
66. Policy DM1 requires that development does not result in the loss or
damage to trees, woodlands, priority habitats or landscape features of
value to biodiversity, unless they can be replaced with features of an
equivalent or enhanced value. Policy DM11 also looks for development to
protect priority species and habitats both on and off sites and also requires
new development to seek a biodiversity net gain.
67. Despite the woodland nature of the site, the vast majority of the proposal
will not affect the trees. In a small number of cases tree removals are
required to make way for the development, but these are not high value
trees and replacement planting will take place. Where work is close to
existing trees suitable mitigation is proposed to ensure that the trees are
not impacted by the construction work or finished development. Instances
where the work involves a higher risk to the existing trees, then the Tree
Officer recommends that supervision and site monitoring details are
secured via condition.
68. The proposal is also accompanied by an ecological impact assessment,
and supporting surveys, which identifies a number of protected and notable
species within the country park and surrounding area. These include the
presence of a maternity roost of pipistrelles bats within Highwood Barn and
Kingfisher Barn; records of dormice (particularly the eastern portion of the
site); there is the likely presence of badgers within the park and otters,
water voles and a diverse range of birds along the River Itchen and
surrounding water meadows. It is also likely that there are a wide range of
invertebrates present over the wider site and adjoining habitats.
69. The most significant work is to Kingfisher (& Highwood) Barn, which
contain existing bat roosts. As bats are a protected species then a detailed
bat mitigation strategy (taking into account the buildings design details) will
need to be agreed upfront before issuing the decision. The other impacts
on protected/notable species are predicted to be short term and suitable
mitigation is provided within the ecological impact assessments.
70. In terms of habitats, the proposed car park will result in the loss of a
substantial area of grassland. However, in ecological terms, the loss of this
grassland is not considered significant and will be more than compensated
for through the proposed rewilding of the existing car parking area next to

51

the ancient woodland. An ecological enhancement plan will be secured via
condition and there incorporating the necessary biodiversity net gains.
Access, Parking and Transport Matters:
71. Policy DM13 requires all new development to make provision for
sustainable transport options and have a safe and convenient access to
the highway network.
72. Itchen Valley County Park is located within an area of countryside that is
not particularly well served by public transport, with the nearest bus stop
being 8-9min walking distance and covering a limited range of services. As
such the t options for sustainable travel are limited. However, the proposal
does make provision for a shared off road cycle/ pedestrian routes within
the park (including a new route around the car parking area). It also
includes the provision of new covered storage for 32 bicycles (split
between the proposed and existing car parking areas) and as such
provides a good level of facilities for cyclists.
73. However, the location of the country park means the vast majority of
visitors use private vehicles and as visitor numbers have increased this is
putting pressure on the existing parking infrastructure.
74. The country park currently has 327 parking spaces. These spaces are
spread across eleven existing car parks, many of which use unmarked
bays, which are inefficient as badly parked cars reduces the parking
capacity at the site. At busy times, the lack of parking creates difficulties
with visitors searching for spaces and results in overflow parking clogging
up the access road. During these times, High Hill Fields is often opened up
for car parking, but this reduces the available recreational space and also
requires additional staffing resource to marshal traffic. Such situations
occur approximately 10 to 15 times a year, and particularly during the
Easter weekend when the majority of visitation during that month is
condensed into a four-day period.
75. To ease the parking issues, the proposal will create a 147 space car park,
which equates to an increase of approximately 100 car parking spaces
(once the rewilding of some of the existing car parks is taken account of).
The car park areas will contain marked spaces to ensure the most efficient
parking arrangement and include seven disabled parking spaces to cater
for a wider range of visitors and electric charging points to promote cleaner
forms of transport.
76. The proposed 147 spaces are split between three interconnecting sections,
with the 57 spaces on the most southerly section being overflow spaces
available during busy periods. The new car parking area is well laid out
with adequate 6.0m aisle widths for ease of turning in and out of parking
spaces, and allowing two-way circulation.

52

77. In terms of the number of vehicle trips, this will vary greatly throughout the
year with higher numbers expected during the summer months, weekends,
holiday periods and organised events. On an average day it is anticipated
that 2 additional vehicle trips would occur in the AM peak period and 36
additional trips would occur within the PM peak period. These figures
represent a minimal increase over and above existing traffic flows on
Allington Lane.
78. A transport assessment has been provided which sets out the anticipated
trip rates and concludes that the site access onto Allington Lane is able to
accommodate the additional capacity with minimal anticipated delays to the
free flow of the highway network. The transport assessment has been
reviewed by the County Council Highways Officer and no objection has
been raised.
Residential Amenity:
79. Policy DM1 states that new development should not have an unacceptable
impact upon the residential amenity of existing dwellings. This is supported
by Policy DM8 which notes that development will not be permitted if it is
likely to cause a loss of amenity through air pollution or noise.
80. Itchen Valley Country Park is accessed off Allington Lane, which is directly
adjacent to a row of residential properties. The closest of these dwellings
(Birchwood Stud) is directly alongside the access road and is
approximately 100m from the proposed overflow car parking area, 300m
from Highwood Barn Hub and 550m from High Hill Field.
81. The new car parking area has the capacity for an additional 100 vehicles
on the site. Whilst it is noted that the increase in car parking provision is
primarily designed to accommodate the existing increase in visitor
numbers, the proposed work also includes the betterment and expansion
of the existing facilities, which in itself is likely to attract higher visitor
numbers. Visitor numbers will vary greatly throughout the year and during
peak times could result in a high volume of traffic using the access road
and potentially causing an issue for the existing residential dwellings,
particularly in terms of noise and air quality.
82. Inline with the Environmental Health Officers comments, noise & air quality
impact assessments are required upfront to enable a full assessment of
these issues and ensure appropriate mitigation is built into the
development where necessary so that the proposal does not have an
unacceptable impact on residential amenity.
83. The other key part of the proposal is the creation of a new events area at
the Highwood Barn Hub. This area will support and expand upon the range
of activates and live events held at the park, which includes occasional
craft markets, talks, music, family performances, outdoor films and standup comedy. However, the majority of the events are intended to be related

53

to recreational and wellbeing activities, and the scale and frequency of the
events would be ancillary to the main use of the country park.

84. It is also noted that many of these live events, and films screenings, have
already been successfully trialled at the site without undue impact
residential properties, which are more than 300m away. The size of the
events at the Highwood Barn Hub is naturally restricted by the available
space (no more than 200 people) and the few evening events are to finish
no later than dusk for safety reasons. The events do not require any
permanent structures and the detail of any new lighting is required via
condition.
85. While the creation of the events hub will result in an increased number of
events (up to three a month in the summer) these events will be managed
on behalf of the council, who have direct control over the site. The
Environmental Health Team have also been proactively engaging with the
organisers over noise control to ensure that noise and disturbance is kept
to a minimum. On this basis, it is considered that restrictive conditions on
the performance events are not necessary.
86. However, it is recommended that a basic set of principles are agreed via
condition to ensure that disturbance is kept to a minimum and that the
country park remains primarily for nature based activities.
Foul and Surface Water Drainage
87. Itchen Valley Country Park is not connected to the sewer network and as
such the proposal requires two new cesspits to be installed; one for the
new modular building at High Hill Field and the second to replace the
existing cesspit for the Highwood Barn Hub. In principle the cesspits are an
acceptable solution, but the final details will need to be agreed via
condition. Arboricultural information has been submitted to demonstrate
that the proposed cesspits will not damage protected trees.
88. In terms of planning policy, Policy DM6 requires new development to
incorporate sustainable drainage systems in order to reduce flooding
and maintain water quality. This is particularly important at the country
park which is close to the banks of the River Itchen.
89. The proposed car parking area has been designed with its own integrated
sustainable drainage system that uses infiltration through permeable
paving, basins and swales.
90. The car parks hard surfacing will be permeable with a granular subbase to
allow for temporary storage and subsequent pollutant removal until the
water can be percolated into the ground. A number of infiltration basins are
strategically located within the car park to capture any surface water runoff.

54

They will appear dry most of the time and will only be used during severe
storm events where rainwater can not infiltrate into the subbase quick
enough. Water will then be stored in the basin until it is infiltrated away.
Finally, swales are positioned between each of the three sections of the car
park and will be used to drain the access road, in a similar manner as the
infiltration basins.
91. This sustainable drainage system will slow down and treat water runoff
from the car park. Pollutants, (including hydrocarbons), are removed from
runoff through filtration, bio-degradation and settlement within the
substructure of the permeable paving, basins and swales before clean
water moves off the site. Other smaller soak ways and drainage systems
are added to the proposed modular building and existing structures within
the country park.
92. Infiltration testing data is required to ensure that the sustainable drainage

system will work on the site, although there is space on site for this system
to be redesigned if infiltration is not possible. On this basis the council is
satisfied that an appropriate sustainable drainage system can be
completed on the site.
Sustainability Measures and Climate Change:
93. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and Environmental
Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things, to: (a) put in place
measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions achieve
carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim for all projects and
services delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030; (c)
ensure that the Council’s procurement policy recognises carbon neutrality
as one of its primary considerations; and (d) recognise the urgency of
action to mitigate and adapt to climate change in every decision taken by
the Council. This is underpinned by the Climate and Environment
Emergency Strategy 2020–2030 and the supporting Climate and
Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020.
94. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero. It
is not part of development plan or emerging plan policy, but it is a material
consideration to be considered alongside all other material considerations.
The need to support the economy is part of the Strategic Environmental
Assessment for the Emerging Local Plan, as is an assessment of climate
impacts.
95. The NPPF, Policies S1, DM2 and DM3 of the Local Plan require
development to be sustainable in terms of resource use, climate change
and energy use. When considering the impact of climate change, the
proposed development is not expected to be directly impacted by the
potential effects of climate change and is expected to have a negligible
impact on the climate because of the development or its use.

55

Equalities Implications:
96. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality
duty. Section149 states:a. A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due
regard to the need to:
i. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any
other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
ii. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it;
iii. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
97. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It
is considered that this application does not raise any equality implications.
Conclusion
98. The planning application is a key part of the wider program of works to
improve the existing facilities and visitor experience at Itchen Valley
Country Park. The principle of development is acceptable and proposed
details meet the relevant planning policies, subject to the information and
suggested conditions outlined at the start of the report.

56

57

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee – 13 June 2022
Application Number:
Case Officer:
Received Date:
Site Address:
Applicant:
Proposal:

Recommendation:

A/22/92460
Summer Sharpe
15 February 2022
1 Lankester House, Kettle & Cake, Freegrounds Road,
Hedge End, SO30 0HG
Alison Davanzo
Consent to install 2no. non-illuminated fascia signs.
(Amended description).
Consent to Display the Advertisement

___________________________________________________________________

CONDITIONS AND REASONS:

1) This consent is for five years from the date of this decision and is
subject to the five standard conditions set out in the Regulations.
a) No advertisement to be displayed without the permission of the
owner of the site (this includes land or buildings where the
advertisement is displayed), or any other person with an interest in the
site entitled to give permission.
b) The siting or display of an advertisement is prohibited if it endangers
anyone using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or
aerodrome (civil or military), or would obscure or hinder the ready
interpretation of any traffic sign, railway sign or aid to navigation by
water or air. It also prohibits the siting or display of an advertisement
that would hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of
security or surveillance (such as closed circuit television cameras), or
for measuring the speed of any vehicles (speed cameras or other
speeding measuring devices).
c) The advertisement and any land or building used for the purpose of
its display to be maintained in a reasonably clean and tidy condition so
that it does not impact the visual amenity of the site.
d) Any structure or hoarding used for the display of advertisements to
be maintained in a safe condition that does not endanger the public.
e) Following the removal of advertisement the site shall be left in a
condition that does not endanger the public and in a reasonably clean
and tidy condition so that it does not impact the site's visual amenity.
Reason: To comply with the advertisement regulations.
2) Plans The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in
accordance with the following plans numbered:

59

- Unit 3, 1 Freegrounds Road, Hedge End, SO30 0HG Elevations and
Site Plan Rev B (received 3 May 2022)
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.
3) The signage hereby permitted shall not be illuminated.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety/amenity.

Informatives:
1. In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (July 2021), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive
approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are
dealt with in a timely manner.
1. Report:
2. This application has been referred to Committee because a Councillor lives
within close proximity to the application site.
3. Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality
4. The application site is located on a corner plot, to the north and east of
Freegrounds Road, the south of St John’s Road (B3033), and the west of
Freegrounds Avenue. The application site itself comprises a ground floor unit
currently in use as a café/ tearoom.
5. The site and wider surrounding area forms part of the secondary shopping
area of Hedge End. To the west of the host building are parking provisions
serving the site and nearby commercial units. To the south are residential
dwellings, to the east is ‘Our Lady of the Assumption’ Catholic Church. Further
east are residential properties, and to the north is the primary shopping area of
Hedge End.
6. Description of Application
7. The proposals have been amended during the application process, this
includes the omission of the 5no. awnings and A-board. The application now
proposed to install 2no. non-illuminated fascia signs.
8. 1no. fascia sign would be located on the north-western elevation (above the
main entrance). This would measure approx. 1.6m by 0.5m and would be
situated approx. 4.2m above ground level. The other fascia sign would be
located along the western elevation. This would measure approx. 5.3m by
0.4m and would be situated approx. 3.4m above ground level. Both signs
would be finished in Perspex.

60

9. Relevant Planning History
Application no.
X/21/92160

X/19/86760

J/17/80081

Proposal
Variation of condition 3 (opening
hours) of planning permission
J/17/80081 for prior approval for
change of use for A1 (retail) to A3
(restaurants and cafes).
Variation of condition 3 of prior
notification J/17/80081 to extend
opening hours.

A/27911/008/00

Prior approval for change of use for
A1 (retail to A3 (restaurants and
cafes).
Change of use from A1 (Retail) to A2
(Financial and professional services).
Retrospective display of 3no.
externally illuminated signs.
Display of internally illuminated fascia
sign.
Installation of air conditioning unit on
existing flat roof.
Erecting illumination box sign.

A/27911/007/00
A/27911/005/00

Display of illuminated signs.
Display of illuminated projecting sign.

Z/27911/002/00

Conversion to offices with external
alterations and associated parking.
Change of use to pet shop.

F/14/74156
A/07/59967
A/05/55569
Z/27911/010/00

Z/27911/001/00
Z/27911/000/00

WIR0041200000

Use of premises as pet shop and
construction of compound for storage
of LPG cylinders.
The display of advertisements.

WIR0032100000

The display of advertisements.

Decision
Permit (March 2022)

Refused (February
2020)
Dismissed Appeal
(November 2020)
Prior Approval Granted
(April 2017)
Permitted (May 2014)
Consent to Display the
Advert (June 2007)
Consent to Display the
Advert (December 2005)
Permitted (October
2002)
Consent to Display the
Advert (October 1987)
Refused (April 1987)
Refused (November
1986)
Permitted (October
1985)
Permitted (February
1985)
Refused (December
1984)
Consent to Display the
Advert (July 1967)
Consent to Display the
Advert (September
1963)

10. Representations Received
11. None received.
12. Consultation Responses
13. Hampshire County Council Highways
14. It is noted that the application description has been amended and the
plans updated accordingly. The proposals have been reduced to two nonilluminated fascia signs, and given they are flat to the surface of the frontage

61

of the building with no protruding over the highway, there is no objection from
a highways perspective.
15. Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site







Within urban edge
Hedge End: Village Centre
Surface water flooding
Airport safeguarding zones
Flood Zone 2 & 3
Solent disturbance zone

16. Development Plan
17. Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036



Strategic policies:
S1 (Sustainable Development);
S2 (Promotion of New Development);




Development Management policies:
DM1 (General Development Criteria);
DM13 (Transport);

18. Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan
19. Policy 15 – Safeguarding of Mineral Resources.
20. National Planning Policy Framework
21. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or
the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy
Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by statute)
applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise and
sets out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.
22. National Planning Practice Guidance
23. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the
consideration and determination of planning applications.
24. Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative
Background

62

25. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
26. The Development Plan comprises the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 20162036 and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 (which is not
applicable in this case). The NPPF and the Planning Practice Guidance
constitute material considerations of significant weight.
27. Principle:
28. The application site falls within the urban edge, whereby the principle of
development is considered to be acceptable. Further it is noted that the site
and surroundings form part of the secondary shopping area of Hedge End
Village Centre, therefore this type of development is common within the
vicinity. The proposals would, however, be subject to the following
considerations.
29. Impact upon Amenity
30. The application proposes 2 no. fascia signs located on the host building.
The fascia sign above the main entrance would replace existing signage of
a similar size and scale, also being in a similar location. Given that this
advert would replace existing, it would therefore be considered acceptable.
31. The amendments to this application include 1no. proposed fascia on the
western elevation in lieu of awnings. The introduction of signage on this
elevation is considered to be appropriate with regard to its size and siting
on the host building, and when read within the wider context of the
surroundings.
32. The application site falls within the Hedge End Village Centre whereby
advertisements are prominent within the immediate and wider surroundings.
It should also be noted that this type of development can benefit from
‘deemed consent’ providing it complies with the criteria set out within
Schedule 3, Part 1 of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. The replacement and
introduction of signage at the application site is therefore considered to
respect the host building and the vicinity, and as such would be acceptable.
33. Impact upon Public Safety
34. Due to the locations, sizes and siting, the adverts are unlikely to pose
any adverse impact upon the public amenity or safety aspects. The
proposals do not obstruct any highway surveillance cameras, speed
cameras or security cameras. The signs are also not considered to distract
road users or highway safety by reason of their size, scale and location.
Further, Highways have not raised any objection with regard to the
proposals.

63

35. As such, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with the
Contents of Section 3 of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 (as amended).
36. Climate Impact and Sustainability
37. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and
Environmental Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other this, to: (a)
put in place measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions
achieve carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim for all
projects and services delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon neutrality
by 2030; (c) ensure that the Councils procurement policy recognises carbon
neutrality as one of its primary considerations; and (d) recognise the
urgency of action to mitigate and adapt to climate change in every decision
taken by the Council. This is underpinned by the Climate and Environment
Emergency Strategy 2020-2030 and the supporting Climate and
Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020.
38. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero. The
NPPF and development plan do not set this as a specific target, but it is a
material consideration to be considered alongside all other material
considerations. In any case addressing climate change is a core part of the
NPPF and emerging plan policy. The need to support the economy is part of
the Strategic Environmental Assessment for the adopted local Plan, as is an
assessment of climate impacts.
39. The NPPF aims for the need for housing to be met, and policy S2 of the
Local Plan sets a target for 14,580 dwellings to be provided by 2036. The
NPPF, Policies S1, DM2, and DM3 of the adopted Local Plan and energy
and water elements of the adopted Environmentally Sustainable
Development SPD require development to be sustainable in terms of
resource use, climate change and energy use. When considering the
impact of climate change, the proposed development is expected to be
resilient to the potential effects of climate change and is expected to limit
impacts on climate emissions as a result of the development or its use.
40. Equalities Implications:
41. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality
duty. Section149 states:- A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to
the need to:
a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

64

c. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.
42. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It is
considered that this application does not raise any equality implications.
43. Conclusion
44. The proposals are considered to be acceptable and are therefore
recommended for approval subject to conditions laid out above.

65

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Monday, 13 June 2022
MAUNSELL WAY EXPERIMENTAL TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER
Report of the Traffic Management Engineer

Recommendation(s)
It is recommended that the experimental traffic regulation order, the effect of which
was to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions on Maunsell Way, be made
permanent.

Summary
The proposal is to implement permanent “no waiting at any time” restrictions in Maunsell
Way, following an identical experimental order which was in force for a period of six
months.
Statutory Powers
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004
Legal Agreements
Agency Agreement dated 10 September 2019 between Hampshire County Council and
Eastleigh Borough Council

Strategic Implications
1.

This report addresses a number of strategic objectives: tackling congestion
and associated pollution and helping to create an Excellent Environment for
all.

Introduction
2.

A permanent Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) was advertised in the Hampshire
Independent newspaper, on the Eastleigh Borough Council Website and on
the HCC Public Notices Portal. The Order subsequently received objections,
including one from Hampshire Constabulary. As a result, it was agreed that
the restriction be introduced experimentally to ascertain whether the concerns
raised were legitimate. This report discusses the history and the results of

67

introducing the experimental restriction and makes a recommendation for
Councillors consideration

Background
3.

A permanent traffic regulation order was advertised on 16 April 2021. The
TRO included a proposal to introduce a ‘no waiting at any time restriction’ on
Maunsell Way, Hedge End (east side) from 15.5 metres north of Drummond
Road northwards to its junction with Giles Close.

4.

Objections were received to the traffic regulation order. The Traffic Engineer
subsequently recommended to the Local Area Committee that the proposal be
withdrawn based on an objection from The Hampshire Constabulary Traffic
Management Officer (TMO).

5.

Councillors asked that this recommendation was re-visited given the nature of
the issues on the road and the views of local residents that they had received.
Concerns were expressed that parking on the inner side of the carriageway
causes visibility issues for vehicles traveling in a northerly direction.

6.

A site visit was undertaken with various stakeholders including Councillors,
the school and engineers. The police TMO declined the invitation to attend.
During the site visit attendees observed the school ingress.

7.

Observations of parking showed visibility issues caused by parked vehicles
north of the Drummond Road junction. The meeting also observed the route to
school for children using the Park and Stride facilities.

8.

Attendees considered the Polices original objection to the TRO, being that
‘requiring vehicles to park on the opposite side of the road to the school
means children exiting from those vehicles will have to cross the road. This
places them in potential conflict with other vehicles.’ Councillors felt that this
arrangement was no different from the arrangement for children using the
Park and Stride facility. In addition, it was noted that, for the vehicles parked
on Maunsell Way, every driver accompanied the children walking to school,
no children were simply dropped off.

9.

It should be noted that finding a safe place to park is still the responsibility of
the driver, as is the pedestrians onward route on foot. Any unrestricted road
should still be assessed before being used as a parking place.

10.

Councillors supported the trial of the experimental Traffic Regulation Order
(eTRO). Citing that it would allow evidence gathering on the effect of the
NWAAT restriction on both pedestrian and vehicular movement. The LAC
could then make their decision on a permanent restriction based on the
findings of the eTRO as explained in this report.

11.

The making of the eTRO was a delegated decision by the Portfolio Holder for
Transport on considering the evidence presented above.

Consultation

68

Eastleigh Borough Council

12.

The experimental order was advertised as “The Borough of Eastleigh (Hedge
End, West End and Botley) (Amendment No 14) Experimental Order 2021.’’

13.

It is not possible to lodge a formal objection to an experimental traffic
regulation order until it is in force. Once it is in force, objections may be made
to the order being made permanent and these must be made within six
months of the day that the experimental order comes into force. The
experimental period ended on 20 February 2022.

Consultation Outcome
a) No further feedback or objection was received to the experimental order
during the experimental period.
b) No safety concerns have been raised and the experimental order has not
been shown to be of detriment to road safety.
c) From observation, the order has been seen to facilitate the passage of
vehicular traffic on the road and improve the free flow of traffic on Maunsell
Way.

Financial Implications
14.

The cost of implementing the permanent TRO is estimated to be £1000.

Risk Assessment
15.

Based on the above evidence it is recommended that a decision is now made
to implement the restriction on a permanent basis.

Equality and Diversity Implications
There are positive impacts to road users by prohibiting waiting on an inner
bend of Maunsell Way, which improves visibility between road users
(including pedestrians) at conflict points.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
16.

The proposals are not expected to increase Greenhouse Gas/CO2, or
damage ecology or the environment.

Conclusion
17.

The proposals have due regard to the requirement of S122 of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act, by securing the expeditious, convenient and safe movement
of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of
suitable and adequate parking facilities on the highway.

TONI JOHNSON
Date:

TECHNICAL SERVICES MANAGER
09/05/2022
Eastleigh Borough Council

69

Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

Toni Johnson
x8213
toni.johnson@eastleigh.gov.uk
1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
* List of Background Papers - None.

70

Eastleigh Borough Council

1 of 1
54

92



50

68

94

38

66

1

62
60
30

56
31a

34

4

29a

3
27a

9

31

29

25

27
28

GIL
ES

CLO
S

E

35

42

19

34

21

14

20

15

14

55

16

STIRLING CRESCENT

18

19

40

39

11

13

57

25

12

59

9

28

34
27

7

39
45

55

46

30

33

1

Existing "No waiting at
any time" restrictions

50

12

2

49

60

59

29

47

56

61

KEY

44

13
24

18
19

66

171

Proposed "No waiting at
any time" restrictions

62

173

61

Y
WA
LL
SE
UN
MA

17
9

CU D
WOR
TH M
EAD

28

25

SCALE

Proposed waiting restrictions
Maunsell Way, Hedge End

DATE

1 : 1250
12/01/2021

DRAWING No.

71

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved
Eastleigh Borough Council
Licence No. 100019622 2021

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

BT

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Monday, 13 June 2022
TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER, VARIOUS ROADS, HEDGE END,
WEST END AND BOTLEY AREA
Report of the Traffic Management Engineer

Recommendation
1. It is recommended that a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is made, the effects of
which are to introduce waiting and parking restrictions in:
a) Bader Close,
b) Bedford Close, (and the unnamed access road between 7 & 9 Bedford
Close),
c) Berry Close,
d) Botley Road (One Way Service Road),
e) Crusader Road,
f) Goodlands Vale,
g) Harris Avenue,
h) Hemdean Gardens,
i) Lynton Road,
j) Simmons Close,
k) Turnpike Way,
l) Upper New Road,
m) West Road and
n) Westward Road
as advertised on 25 March 2022.

Summary
A proposal to introduce waiting and parking restrictions in various roads in Hedge End,
West End and Botley was advertised on 25 March 2022. Representations were received
both in support of, and objection to, the advertised restrictions. This report summarises
the comments received and recommends how to proceed

Statutory Powers
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.

73

Legal Agreements
Agency Agreement between Hampshire County Council (HCC) and Eastleigh Borough
Council dated 10 September 2019.

Strategic Implications
1.

Creating an excellent environment for all by removing obstructive and
inconsiderate parking, and by providing time-limited parking places outside
local shops.

Introduction
2.

Various roads in the Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area have been
investigated in response to reported problems such as obstructive parking.
Site investigations were undertaken to assess the issues being experienced
by road users, and to decide on appropriate measures to mitigate the issues.

3.

This report details the comments received during the public consultation
period. The Committee is asked to consider the comments received, before
deciding to introduce, amend or withdraw the Traffic Regulation Order.

4.

Notice has now been served by Hampshire County Council regarding
termination of the agency agreement for the delivery of Traffic Management
Services in Eastleigh Borough. This means that the statutory responsibility for
implementing, amending, or revoking parking and waiting restrictions in
Eastleigh Borough will revert to Hampshire County Council on 31 March 2023.

Detail

74

5.

Consultation was undertaken by means of a Public Notice on the Eastleigh
Borough Council website, published in the Hampshire Independent
newspaper, and posted on street furniture in the vicinity of the proposed
restrictions. Plans showing the proposed restrictions are in Appendix 1.

6.

Twenty-three representations were received in total. Six in relation to Bedford
Close, eight in relation to Berry Close, one in relation to Botley Road (Spur),
four in relation to Hemdean Gardens, two in relation to West Road and one in
relation to Westward Road. The representations are summarised below,
along with the Engineer’s response. The full (redacted) text of the
representations can be found in Appendix 2.
Comment

Engineer’s response

Two residents from the same
household in Bedford Close
commented that consideration be
given to reducing the length of
restrictions outside nos. 6 & 7 and

After considering the comments
received, reducing the length of the
proposed restrictions can be
considered by the Local Area
Committee (LAC). Issues with the

Eastleigh Borough Council

that additional restrictions be
considered at the junction of the
access road with Bedford Close
between nos. 26 & 27.
Also, that a Park and Stride
arrangement be operated and the
linking of School Lane to Sovereign
Drive to allow a one-way operation.

access road junction between nos.
26 & 27 have not been previously
reported. Requests for further
waiting restrictions are outside the
scope of this report and would need
to be investigated for possible
inclusion in a future scheme by
Hampshire County Council (HCC),
as delivery of traffic management
services will be reverting to HCC
after the agreement with the
Borough Council was ended.
HCC’s School Travel Officer works
with schools to promote sustainable
travel to school and to encourage
parents to park with consideration to
residents.

Other residents in Bedford Close
object on the grounds that the
proposals will reduce the space
available for residents to park.

It is vehicle driver’s responsibility to
find appropriate and legal places to
park. Residents may have to find
kerbside parking further away from
their homes. However, after
considering the comments received,
reducing the length of the proposed
restrictions can be considered by the
LAC.

A non-resident who drives her child
to the school and parks in Bedford
Close suggests that the school
staggers arrival and finish times, and
that permits are made available to
parents.

Hampshire County Council’s School
Travel Officer works with schools to
promote sustainable travel to school
and to encourage parents to park
with consideration to residents.
Requests for parents parking
permits are outside the scope of this
report and would need to be
investigated for possible inclusion in
a future scheme by HCC, as delivery
of traffic management services will
be reverting to HCC after the
agreement with the Borough Council
was ended.

Another resident comments that
vehicles displaced by the proposed
restriction may park on the main
road, which could be less safe for

At this stage it is not clear where
displaced vehicles might be parked.
Motorists are encouraged to park
legally and with due consideration

Eastleigh Borough Council

75

76

school children

for other road users, although this
may mean parking further away than
they might prefer. The Traffic
Management Team will continue to
monitor the road safety situation.

A resident in Berry Close requests
consideration of Residents’ parking
scheme.

Requests for residents parking are
outside the scope of this report and
would need to be investigated for
possible inclusion in a future scheme
by HCC as delivery of traffic
management services will be
reverting to HCC after the
agreement with the Borough Council
was ended.

A resident in Berry Close requests a
reduction in the length of restrictions
at the junction with Crusader Road
and within Berry Close but also
additional markings in other
locations within Berry Close.

After considering the comments
received, reducing the length of the
proposed restrictions can be
considered by the LAC. Requests
for further waiting restrictions are
outside the scope of this report and
would need to be investigated for
possible inclusion in a future scheme
by HCC. Delivery of traffic
management services will be
reverting to HCC, after the
agreement with the Borough Council
was ended.

A resident in Berry Close requests a
reduction in the length of restrictions
within Berry Close and reducing the
time period of the restrictions.

After considering the comments
received, reducing the length of the
proposed restrictions and reducing
the time period for the restrictions in
Berry Close to Monday to Friday
8am – 4pm can be considered by
the LAC. Requests for further
waiting restrictions are outside the
scope of this report and would need
to be investigated for possible
inclusion in a future scheme by
HCC. Delivery of traffic management
services will be reverting to HCC
after the agreement with the
Borough Council was ended.

A resident in Berry Close requests a
reduction in the length of restrictions
within Berry Close and reducing the
time period of the restrictions.

After considering the comments
received, reducing the length of the
proposed restrictions and reducing
the time period for the restrictions in

Eastleigh Borough Council

The introduction of two disabled
bays is also requested.

Berry Close to Monday to Friday
8am – 4pm can be considered by
the LAC.
Applications for disabled bays would
need to be made by the residents in
need of this facility and will be dealt
with independently of this Traffic
Regulation Order. Requests for
further waiting restrictions are
outside the scope of this report and
would need to be investigated for
possible inclusion in a future scheme
by HCC.Delivery of traffic
management services will be
reverting to HCC, after the
agreement with the Borough Council
was ended.

A resident in Berry Close comments
that residents will not be able to park
outside of their houses.

At this stage it is not clear where
displaced vehicles might be parked.
Motorists are encouraged to park
legally and with due consideration
for other road users, and in
accordance with the provisions of
the Highway Code, although this
may mean parking further away than
they might prefer. Reducing the
length of the proposed restrictions
and reducing the time period for the
restrictions in Berry Close to Monday
to Friday 8am – 4pm can be
considered by the LAC.

A resident in Berry Close agrees
with the proposed restrictions at the
junction with Crusader Road but
suggests further restrictions in Berry
Close. A request for Access
Protection Markings across all
driveways is also made.

Requests for further waiting
restrictions are outside the scope of
this report and would need to be
investigated for possible inclusion in
a future scheme by HCC. Delivery of
traffic management services will be
reverting to HCC after the
agreement with the Borough Council
was ended.
Applications for Access Protection
Markings can be made by individual
residents but will be dealt with via a
different process.

Eastleigh Borough Council

77

A resident in Berry Close suggests
physical works to increase the
number of parking bays currently
provided. They also request
additional restrictions and
consideration of residents parking.

Requests for additional parking
space, residents parking and further
waiting restrictions would need to be
investigated for possible inclusion in
a future scheme by HCC. Delivery of
traffic management services will be
reverting to HCC, after the
agreement with the Borough Council
was ended.

A resident in Berry Close agrees
with some restrictions but allowing
room for residents too.

After considering the comments
received, reducing the length of the
proposed restrictions and reducing
the time period for the restrictions in
Berry Close to Monday to Friday
8am – 4pm can be considered by
the LAC.

A resident in Berry Close requests
consideration of a reduced time
period for restrictions but also
additional lengths of restrictions.

After considering the comments
received, reducing the length of the
proposed restrictions and reducing
the time period for the restrictions in
Berry Close to Monday to Friday
8am – 4pm can be considered by
the LAC.
Requests for further waiting is
outside the scope of this report and
restrictions would need to be
investigated for possible inclusion in
a future scheme by HCC. Delivery of
traffic management services will be
reverting to HCC, after the
agreement with the Borough Council
was ended.

A business manager in Botley Road
(Spur) questions the need for time
limited parking but also complains of
parking in the same bays by DPD
staff. Considers the proposals will
make things worse for the business
managers own staff.

78

The proposals are intended to allow
customers of the businesses in
Botley Road (Spur) to park more
easily. At this stage it is not clear
where displaced staff vehicles might
be parked. Motorists are
encouraged to park legally and with
due consideration for other road
users, although this may mean
parking further away than they might

Eastleigh Borough Council

prefer.

A response (no address provided) to
the proposals in Hemdean Gardens
asks where displaced cars in Upper
New Road will park.

At this stage it is not clear where
displaced staff vehicles might be
parked. Motorists are encouraged to
park legally and with due
consideration for other road users,
although this may mean parking
further away than they might prefer.

A resident of Hemdean Gardens
supports the proposals.

Noted.

Residents of two separate
addresses in Hemdean Gardens ask
for further restrictions in Upper New
Road.

Requests for further waiting
restrictions are outside the scope of
this report and would need to be
investigated for possible inclusion in
a future scheme by HCC. Delivery of
traffic management services will be
reverting to HCC, after the
agreement with the Borough Council
was ended.

Residents of two separate
addresses in New Road support the
proposals for New Road.

Noted.

A resident of Westward Road
complains about non–residential
parking by staff from nearby
factories, but that proposals are too
restrictive.

After considering the comments
received, reducing the length slightly
of the proposed restrictions in
Westward Road can be considered
by the LAC.

One complaint received regarding
the length of time the notices were
on site for. (No address supplied).

The notices were erected on site
from 25 March to 15 April and were
in accordance with the statutory
process for advertising of TRO
proposals.

Eastleigh Borough Council

79

Financial Implications
7.

The costs of the TRO and associated road markings are funded from the core
TRO Programme budget as part of the “Various roads” allocations, at a cost of
approximately £5,000.

Risk Assessment
8.

If the proposals are not implemented, it is likely that the issues intended to be
addressed in the above roads will continue.

Equality and Diversity Implications
9.

The Equality Act is relevant to the decision and an Equality Impact
Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and attached as Appendix 3 to the
report. In summary the EqIA shows that:

10.

There are minor positive impacts in many of the roads identified within the
proposals by restricting waiting at the kerbside, thereby discouraging drivers
from obstructing footways and driveways.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
11.

The proposals should not increase Greenhouse Gas/CO2, or damage ecology
or the environment. Short-stay parking in Botley Road (Spur) provides a
turnover of vehicles, allowing customers to park close to the shops, reducing
the time taken to look for parking places.

Conclusion
12.

The proposals have due regard to the requirement of S122 of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act, by securing the expeditious, convenient and safe movement
of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of
suitable and adequate parking facilities on the highway. The proposed waiting
restrictions attracted objections, comments and expressions of support. This
report takes into consideration all the representations received and
recommends that this Committee introduces waiting restrictions as advertised.

ANDREW PLEDGE
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT ENGINEER
Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

80

16 May 2022
Andrew Pledge
x8336
andy.pledge@eastleigh.gov.uk
2

Eastleigh Borough Council

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
None

Eastleigh Borough Council

81

This page is intentionally left blank

83

84

85

86

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY) (AMENDMENT NO. 15)
ORDER 2022 – CONSULTATION RESPONSES
1.
After reading through the notice that has been placed in Bedford Close, Hedge End, SO30 0PS, I am
writing to you with a few concerns and suggestions about the new TRO.
Double yellow lines in front of No.6 & 7, and one car space by the lay by, would mean less parking
for the residents.
We agree with the 'no waiting at any time' in the access gap between No.7 and No.9 Bedford Close
garages and wondered if this could also be at the access point between No.26 and No.27 Bedford
Close for those garages, as parents use it and the private garages as a turning point and also a
parking place. Other residents have said that parents are also parking in the private garage space for

87

numbers 1 to 19 of Bedford Close and when asked to move by the residents and not to park here
again, the parents are reluctant to do so.
The residents do appreciate, that living near a school has these problems but the volume of traffic
using Bedford Close has increased a lot over the last 12 months, where frustration of unable to park
or get near our properties has grown. Also, where there are residents who are ill and elderly, the
reactions of parents are unnecessary and also the 'dings' in their vehicles.
Once these new regulations 'might' be implemented, the only way they would work, is to have
traffic wardens walk the route regularly, then hopefully the parents would understand what is being
asked of them. If this Close was part of a neighbourhood watch scheme, would the residents have
more 'say' in what is happening?
Plus, the safety of the children is a concern, with the volume of traffic and speed that people drive in
and out, I have witnessed a few near misses. Having lived here for 22 years and I worked at FJS for
15 years, I do understand how hard it is on both sides of this situation but I felt I had to voice my
concerns,
There are two ideas we have had, which we know have been talked about in the past but thought I
would air them again:
A park and stride scheme, like they use at Kings Copse School but where parents park is the obstacle
or
Make it a through road, school lane into Sovereign Drive, so it would be one way from Hobb Lane
and it would be policed by Head Teacher/Deputy Head/a member of SLT, when it is drop off or pick
up to ensure a flow of traffic and might help with no 'near misses'. Though this might have
opposition from the residents in Sovereign Drive.
We understand there are so many issues,
Many thanks

2.
I write to object proposals to impose no waiting.
Whilst I accept that this area becomes busy around the opening and closing times of the
Freegrounds Junior school, I do not believe there is any danger to other traffic or pedestrians over
and above any other road in Hedge End at this time of the day. Neither do I believe, or have I ever
witnessed any obstruction for vehicular traffic.
However what I HAVE witnessed are several hostile residents from Bedford Close who clearly are
unhappy with parents legally parking on a public road to collect and drop off children from the local
school which I have found to be unacceptable. An example only yesterday where gentleman told me
I could not turn around in the (not private) parking area and that his car had been damaged by 'the
school lot'!

88

I am personally going to find any such proposals implemented an incredible inconvenience. I live in a
new build estate by junction 8 of the motorway (yet I am in catchment) and it will take me over 30
minutes to walk my daughter to the school. That's an hour each way for me. I am a full time working
mum and I simply do not have time for such a walking commute as this when i have to start work
before 9am. Imposing these parking restrictions means I, and a few others in my position, will not
have anywhere close to park. What do you propose?!
I am fairly sure that those residents adamant on having these parking restrictions will pressure and
ensure these proposals are enforced despite anyone's objections. However, could the council work
with the school to understand who has to travel over a certain distance so that they could be issued
with a permit should they wish, perhaps? Or, maybe the school could do more to stagger their start
(AND FINISH) times, to ease the pressure a but more. I just think there has to be a better way than a
blanket no waiting for everyone, which will undoubtedly inconvenience the residence themselves
surely?! Thank you for your consideration and await your final decision.

3.
I would like to log my objection to part of the planned road markings within Bedford Close: the no
waiting restriction outside of number 6 and number 7 and the ones being proposed for the corner of
our shared car park entrance under the trees. I have lived at number x Bedford Close for over 22
years and cars have always parked in these areas without issue; no injuries to anyone and we have
always been able to access the private car park. I therefore cannot see why these areas are being
earmarked for no waiting when nothing has changed in the close in this area to warrant this.
As mentioned above I have lived at x Bedford Close for over 2 decades and have always been able to
park outside of my own property (number 6). I have 2 adult children who still live at home (meaning
we have 3 cars) and the no waiting restriction you are proposing outside of nos 6 & 7 will take away
the spaces we predominantly use on a daily basis. There is one space in the private parking area that
we can sometimes utilise (shared area), otherwise there are no designated spaces within the close
we are able to use. We are the only house (on the left of the road) without a drive and I feel we are
now being penalised because of this, being a single parent has meant I have not been in a position to
be able to get a drive put in and until these proposed new road markings this has never been a
major issue. I obviously now will have no choice but to look into the possibility of being able to get
the curb dropped. (Hence, I would not want no waiting restrictions in place if that were the case
either). The proposals will force more residents to have to seek alternative parking out on Sovereign
Drive which is often full of an evening/weekend anyway, if that is the case then where do you
propose we should go? I have a young grandson and an elderly mother with a heart condition who
are over every weekend so being able to park outside/close to my house is of vital importance to
me. If these restrictions were in place when I bought the property then fair enough but to take away
something that has been available to me for over 20 years does not seem right.
I made a choice to live near the school, just like everyone who lives in the close, the school was there
before I moved in, the increase in traffic at school drop off and pick up times again is not new, so
why would you be looking to make such changes now reducing parking spaces available to residents
at a time when we all know there are more cars around than in previous times?
I feel that due to the short sightedness of a few and the inconvenience of an increase in the number
of cars being in the area for around 30 mins per day (during term time only) these additional parking
measures are being proposed which yes, will have an impact on parents on the school run for that
small part of their day but will mainly impact the residents who live in the Close, all day, every single

89

day of the year. You are taking away parking for my property specifically and the additional spaces
which are used by residents and visitors to our homes.
It is likely that this proposal will then force the additional (non-residents) cars into the private
parking area which is shared ownership between the properties who use it, the surface of this is
already damaged so any extra use needs to be avoided not encouraged. The focus of your Order has
been on this area of the close but if you were going to treat everyone fairly why would you not be
putting markings near the other private parking areas or over the other side of the close outside of
residents housing? I am not saying this should happen for one minute but it just feels like the plans
have not been thought through and little or no consideration has been given to the residents who
live here; being the one with no drive this proposal will have the most significant impact to me and
my family if it goes ahead. If I am left with no parking I will have to consider moving but then again
having no parking for the property will reduce the value of the house.
In conclusion, for the above reasons I very strongly oppose the no waiting restrictions outside of
number 6 and number 7 and the corner of the shared car park entrance under the trees.
Kind regards

4.
Dear Sir/Madam
I am writing to express my concerns with the planning to put double yellow lines within Bedford
Close. I have seen the plans and the maps in which show where they new parking restrictions are
going to go. I understand that school pick up time around this area can cause a lot of traffic, however
this has always been the case. I live in one of the houses where you are planning to put the double
yellow lines in front of. In fact the only people this is going to affect hugely is my house. We park
both of our cars on this bit of road directly outside out house – and have done for the 22 years living
here. As a family with not enough spare money, we do not have the funds to put a drive way in. This
means that if double yellow lines are introduced to this section of road, we will have no where to
park our cars for our own home which just isn’t reasonable, fair or needed. We also have a baby in
the family who stays with us each week – having to park on the main road of else where other than
directly outside our house is extremely dangerous now he is able to walk.
I am writing to you for you to reconsider these plans for the parking restrictions and double yellow
lines. These restrictions will really affect us and our home life as we will have no where safe and near
our home to park our cars. Personally, I don’t trust the area and do not wish to park my car out of
the sight of where I live.
This bit of road where you are planning to change the parking requirements, has no real problems
with school pick up and our cars being parked there cause no danger whatsoever.
With this is mind, please rethink the plan and have some thought into the home owners directly
around this section.

5.
I am writing to log my objection to part of the road markings being planned for Bedford Close: the
no waiting restriction outside of number 6 and number 7 and the ones being proposed for the
corner of our shared car park entrance under the trees.
I live at x Bedford Close and parking can sometimes be difficult now in the evenings and weekends
when all residents are home but would be impossible when you effectively take away another 4

90

spaces which when used by careful/thoughtful residents of the Close do not cause any issues to
pedestrians or access to the private car park. We have all lived with these spaces being used for
years with no incidents. The additional school run traffic which may cause an issue is very short lived
for around 20/30 mins per day during the school term time only but that should not mean that the
people who live in the Close then need to pay the price for this, 24 hours a day, every day of the
year.
I have my young son every weekend and need to be able park close to home. The idea of having no
waiting restrictions outside of our home when my family have lived here for over 20 years and been
able to park there without causing any problems all of that time doesn't make much sense and
seems a little excessive.
My mother is now having to work from home (due to changes brought about by COVID) so her car is
parked outside of x Bedford Close the majority of the time, day and night. This proposal has brought
about much anxiety for our family, being the only house on the left of the Close without a drive
these proposals impact us directly whereas other properties in our row all still have parking
available, your proposal takes this away from us.
We therefore would be very grateful if you could reconsider this part of your proposal.
I look forward to hearing from you.
Kind regards

6.
A resident called regarding the yellow lines which the council are planning on installing on Bedford
Close. Doesn't like the idea along with lots of other residents in the Close mainly because the main
road would be used to drop and pick children up and she feels this is unsafe as it’s a busy main road.

7.
Dear council,
In terms of parking, what about residents parking? I live at number x Berry Close and with these
proposed changes you will reduce parking in what is already crowded place to park. These are 4
houses that have no driveways, numbers 18, 19, 20 and 21.
Will the 4 parking bays opposite these houses be allocated parking to the properties.
> As these proposed changes will affect myself I would like for the council to consider an alternative
solution.
>
> I believe the proposals are excessive, however something does need to be done. As a resident I
struggle to get in the close on occasions due to the reasons below.
>
> The area of berry close consists of houses with driveways for multiple vehicles, houses without
driveways or allocated parking and maisonettes with allocated parking. I live in one of the properties
with no allocated parking or driveway. So this proposal will have a direct effect on me and my
husband.
>

91

> Berry Close is a small cul de sac and the prosed changes will only make current issues with vehicle
parking worse as people will park further out causing congestion on the outer limits. I do believe a
different solution should be considered.
>
> Most of the time of the day the residents of Berry Close are at work and the area does not cause
any issues. The issues with congestion and obstruction happen at school drop off and school
collection. At these times the Close is full of cars that are collecting children during the school run
and can last up to 2 hours each time. The cars park half on the road and pathways and on the
grassed areas. I have raised this with the school many times but as it’s a public road they can not
enforce any thing. This then causes an obstruction to other traffic trying to get into Berry Close.
>
> The other main issue is the parking of the residents who live in the maisonettes. These
maisonettes have allocated parking but they mostly park out side the maisonettes causing this part
of the road to be made smaller and difficult to pass.
>
> My solution to the problems would be to make Berry Close a Permit Parking area. This will stop
obstructions from school pick up and force the residents in the maisonettes to use their privately
owned parking spaces. Freeing up the close. Residents like myself will be able to park near our
properties.
>
> Personally for my household I have a disabled husband with mobility constraints who needs to
park close to our home and the proposal will make it very difficult for him if he can not park near his
home.
>
> Please can you put this forward as an alternative to the proposal.
>
> Kindest Regards

8.
I write to you in connection with the proposed changes to adding double yellows in Crusader Road /
Berry Close junction
The proposed addition of lines to the South side of the Crusader Road/Berry Close junction is, in my
opinion, over the top and going to cause more problems for the residents than it solves. The
proposal removes important parking space for the local residents, which isn’t necessary to do to
achieve your objective of allowing safe and clear passage for traffic and pedestrians. I feel only the
North side is necessary and when adhered to, there is no impedance to traffic flow or safety in the
road. A number of houses immediate to this junction rely on this space for parking and the lines
seem to continue beyond the immediate corner and will remove the space I currently use to park my
vehicle (when available) as the line proceeds down Crusader Road much further than the curvature
of the corner and to the front of my property. The line also continues into Berry Road much further
than it needs to and will remove legitimate parking spaces there. I have (crudely) attempt to mark
on the plans in purple these areas.
Secondly, I feel these plans don’t consider the other places where I feel there SHOULD be double
yellows to prevent traffic and are the actual cause of traffic problems seen in the road. In particular:
a) Opposite the junction on the East side of Crusader road, cars often park and stop traffic (including
the bin lorry) from access. This is a problem day and night.
b) The South side of Berry Close, to the side of Nos 31/30, particularly at drop off/pickup times with
parents parking on the road opposite to where the residents cars are parked and blocking the

92

access. Parents also are parking on the kerb here, blocking the pavement for pedestrians.
c) Continuing along Berry Close from the proposed North side line
The above areas are marked in Green below, where I feel there should be a no-waiting restriction
added.

An example of parking that often blocks Crusader due to the lack of these lines – Note cars can

93

squeeze through here, but only because the pavement is now impeded:

94

An example of parking working fine along the south side of the Berry Close junction:

An example of problematic parking in Berry Close this will not solve. Note the Blue mini on the
pavement and limited passing space for road traffic:

95

I urge the council to reconsider it’s plans for double yellow lines here. It feels like someone has
reported the problem, but the person in charge of fixing it hasn’t actually looked for themselves at
the road during busy periods and then during the normal day to make an informed decision about
the changes. I feel the changes proposed are going to negatively impact my house value due to

96

reduced legitimate and safe parking availability in the area, and cause the residents more grief than
the original problem it is attempting to solve, without fixing the REAL issues with cars blocking
access.
Many thanks for taking the time to read this and I look forward to a reply.
Best regards,

9.
Have lived here for nearly 12 years, in that time there have been a few minor scratch incidents but
only through poor driving and no more than you would get in the car park by the Co-op.
No pedestrian has been involved in a collision with a vehicle.
There are two short periods of time when traffic is busiest, dropping off and picking up from the
school. In the main both times are after and before most residents who work have left or not
returned.
Drivers move to facilitate others in their comings and goings.
As far as aware major deliveries timed after or before the busiest times including refuse collections.
The proposal is in effect removing up to 12 parking space from the upper end of the close!
With regard to one of the options you proffered:A limited time when the parking restrictions were to be enforced rather that no parking at any
time:
This I cannot see working as it would the mean that some residents having to move their cars;
and if the area as a whole had same where would they re-park? And, with the inconvenience
caused do not think this would go down well at all.
While I agree with the proposal on the entrance to the close, to match the “highway code” length
requirements; there are two other sections that should potentially be amended as they would take
out 4 of the 6 currently used spaces; the rest should be dropped.
The section alongside of number 30/31 to be reduced in length to finish opposite the right hand side
of the walkway next to number 4, this would maintain the 2 of the 4 parking spaces in front of the
flats.
The section on far side of the road in front of the flats; to start from the bush at number 21 to the
last of the wooden posts, maintaining another two parking spaces.
I have been informed by a local estate company that highly restrictive parking could reduce the
value of properties be as much as 5 - 6%, as it would reduce the number of potential buyers /
renters; acting as an inhibitor for family / friends visiting etc. So as far as “no parking at any time”
option this must be dropped!
I also note that there are NO disabled parking bay proposals with-in the online plan.
There are as far as I am aware four eligible holders, including three that currently have blue badge
parking permits.

97

Would it not be a good time, even if any or no yellow line going in to include at least 2 bays?

10.
Good morning,
I was just emailing to comment on the proposed TRO above. I was wondering if the amount of
spaces needed for on road parking has been taken into account with the no waiting restrictions
being implemented in Berry Close and Crusader Road? There is a large amount of on road parking as
garages are old and no longer fit for purpose as cars have got bigger and wider and houses only
having one parking space or garage and a lot of households having two cars now so needing to put
one on the road.
With the cars in berry close there will be the potential for a knock on effect into Crusader Road and
Sovereign Drive as they will not use their garages if they even have garages and will then park on the
road out the front of our houses in Crusader Road or potentially even parking behind their gardens
blocking off our garages which has happened before.
That in turn will spill crusader road parking over onto Sovereign Drive. The removal of some of the
double yellow lines in Sovereign Drive would add an additional space or two but surely this will not
be enough to accommodate the losses of space with the proposed no waiting restrictions and so a
lot of people will end up with nowhere to park their cars outside of their own house.
Thank you for your time and consideration of my comment,
Best wishes,
11.
As a resident of Berry Close in Hedge End for the last 14 years I would like to oppose the suggested
‘no waiting at any time’ proposed changes.
This will cause major problems and upset for many residents whose block garages are not fit for
purpose with cars now being wider making it impossible to put their car in. These residents have no
option but to park on the road or in the lay-by. Removing the ability to do this will cause major
problems for these residents.
I agree that there should be a restriction at the entry to Berry Close for a number of meters, as at
times (school pick up/drop off) this can be dangerous and cause a blockage where by an emergency
vehicle would not be able to enter the close.
I would propose double yellow lines at the entry to the close on either one or two sides up-to the
first set of garage blocks on the left.
I would also propose a solid white line at the foot of everyone’s driveways to stop/deter parents
from parking across driveways at school pickup.
This will still allow residents the freedom to park on the road who need to along with visitors to
residents.

98

12.
To whom it may concern.
I am emailing you with regards to the proposed no waiting at any time changes in Berry Close Hedge
End. I agree with the no parking on both corners to the entrance of Berry Close off Crusader road.
However once in the close the current parking situation is already very limited for residents. The
existing parking habits of the residents does not cause any issues for access to private driveways ,
the rear residents car park/ garages or to private or rented properties.
The only times there are any access issues is when the local school children are dropped off and
picked up as some of the parking is very poor restricting movement in and around the close. Actions
of visitors to the close and surrounding areas should not dictate any changes to the parking which
will affect the residents of the close.
This estate was built in the 1970’s when most properties would generally have one car. Each
property was designed with either an allocated space in the car park, a driveway or a garage. The
majority of these properties now have two cars meaning parking within the close and surrounding
roads is already very restricted. The no waiting proposals will cause massive problems for residents
of Berry Close. As I look out of my window now there are 8 cars parked in the proposed no waiting
zone that will have nowhere to park. These cars are not blocking the road for residents or
emergency services. This is a close and not a through road!
The majority of these vehicles are not there during weekdays between the hours of 9 to 5 and as a
result would not cause issues for council access to cut grass, clearing of drains, road sweeping or
refuse collection.
Is it possible to enlarge the existing parking bay to allow a further two or three cars to park safely off
the road?
Can residents be issued with parking permits to allow them to park within the close and make it a
resident only parking area?
I have attached a photo of your plans with some additional notes for your reference.

99

I very much look forward to your response.

13.
Our concerns are difficulties, and potential accident risks, entering and exiting Berry Close, due to
parking, especially on the corner of the road. Also on many occasions emergency vehicles would be
unable to pass into the close.
The school run is a difficult time for residents of Berry Close, when there can be double parking, and
abuse of driveways, and grass verges, and a lot of noise. We would strongly welcome restricted
parking during this time.
However we would be disappointed to see complete double parking restrictions throughout the
close all the time. Many residents do not have driveways. For those of us with driveways this would
mean we could not have visitors park outside our homes, or vacate our driveways on a temporary
basis for access to our home for tradesmen, ambulances etc.
Therefore our conclusion is that we would value some restrictions as identified in this email, but still
want to be able to park outside our own homes. It is not fair if we are penalised for the misfortune
to live near a school.
Thank you for reading this email, please can you acknowledge you have received it ok, and that it
has gone to the right source.

100

Further to the above, I would add further concern where all the cars will park who reside in the
close, and whether that could lead to tensions, we have an outer driveway, could it be that folks may
park there blocking us in? Also I do feel sympathy for folks coming home from work etc and unable
to park. Many residents have more than one car?

14.
I write with regards the proposed no waiting restrictions for Berry Close, Hedge End
As a resident I welcome the restrictions as it is often quite difficult, if not impossible to access my
driveway when leaving or returning to my address.
The main problem with non-residential parking in Berry Close is created by the parents dropping off
and later collecting their children from the nearby Freegrounds Infant and Junior Schools primarily
between 0830-0900 and again at 1445-1545.
Outside of these hours, and on non-school days, parking does not present any problem with access.
On this basis, you may wish to consider a timed restriction of 0800-0900 and 1430-1600 Monday to
Friday, as outside of these hours, access into Berry Close is clear (but restrictions at the mouth of the
junction with Crusader Road should be applied 24/7).
By applying parking restrictions between limited times would also allow Parking Wardens to
effectively enforce the regulations, something which I do not believe will be done outside of normal
working hours.
I note from both the Schedule and the Drawing that there are no proposed restrictions on either the
North or South sides of Berry Close at the East end of the road, apart from the short section each
side when entering from Crusader Road. Allowing unrestricted parking in this area of Berry Close will
add to the existing problem of school drop off parking, where cars are often parked on both sides of
the road with very limited access through. Some drivers, wanting to allow space for access park
their cars entirely on the footpath on the South side, thereby forcing pedestrians to walk in the road.
This makes it a dangerous area when parents are trying to offload their children from a car to walk
them into the school.
Unless a council representative has already visited the site between the above times, I would
encourage such a visit so the Council is fully aware of the problem, and would be happy to meet with
them on site to discuss.
I would also suggest the following amendments to Schedule 1.
REMOVE
Berry Close

Both

From its junction with Crusader Road for 14.5 metres
in a westerly direction.

ADD
Berry Close

North

From its junction with Crusader Road for 14.5 metres
in a westerly direction.

ADD
Berry Close

South

From its junction with Crusader Road for *** metres in
a westerly direction.

101

The *** distance should be from the junction with Crusader Road to the point where it would meet
the proposed no waiting area adjacent to no’s 30-31 Berry Close (shown in the drawing with a blue
line).
The rationale behind this is that parents will be able to park on the North side of Berry Close, and
safely escort their children to school without having the cross the road as footpath leading to the
school between no’s 4 & 5 is on that side of the road.
15.
Good Morning
Can you please let me know why it is necessary to reduce the already poor parking in the area? We
already struggle to park our vehicles as the DPD van generally take up an inordinate amount of
parking when they can park in their yard
We often have to walk over 1/2 mile to and from our work just to park on a good day and this will
only make matters worse, not only for us, but for the other shops and premises.
I look forward to hearing from you soon

16.
Once you carry out the works stated in the above public notice please can you outline what will
happen in HEMDEAN GARDENS with the excessive cars parking in our road now they are no longer
able to park in UPPER NEW ROAD?
Many thanks,

17.
This is something we whole heartedly agree with and welcome as since moving to the area in Nov
2020 we have tried repeatedly to get the Police and Council in to acknowledge the risk and dangers
posed by irresponsible drivers parking within 10 meters in contravention of the highway code. It's
led to a repeated number of near misses as we have tried to exit our driveway (no.1) as our property
sits at the junction.
Kind Regards
18.
wishes for the team to reassess the new application to place road markings (double yellows?) along
Upper New Road due to the volume of parks cars etc. xx has seen the proposed application to place
these markings along the road for 15 metres but feels this is not long enough. Would like this to be
reconsidered.
19.
Regarding the proposed parking restrictions on Upper New Road and Hemdean Gardens.
It would be much better if the restriction can be extended further up the road.

102

As things stand at the moment I can very rarely turn right out of my drive due to the number of
parked vehicles.
By reducing parking spaces down the hill parking will be forced to extend further up the hill making
the problem even worse.
Vision on leaving the property is restricted anyway and so many vehicles use the road as a ‘rat run’
usually not adhering to the speed limit.
Fewer parked vehicles would improve safety on the road.
Regards

20.
We would like to offer our full support to the proposed TRO for West Road, Hedge End.
The proposed order will address the years of inconsiderate parking and occasionally a complete
obstruction of the road that the residents have had to endure, it will also facilitate the safe passage
of traffic including access for utility and emergency vehicles. It should also address the proliferation
of private cones and enhance the general amenity and appearance of the area.
We look forward to the order being implemented at the earliest opportunity.
Kind regards

21.
I would like to make a comment on the proposed TRO for West Road Hedge End in full support of
the proposals ,West Road is an old and quite narrow road which makes access for delivery vehicles ,
refuse lorries , and more importantly emergency vehicles extremely difficult if vehicles are
inconsiderately parked on both sides which they often are , to have clear access on one side would
make a huge difference and I fully support the full recommendations for the whole of West Road .
Also there are elderly and disabled residents living in the road who rely on patient transport and use
the the community bus to get out and about all these bigger vehicles have great difficulty in access
as they have to reverse the entire length of the road either in or out , being unable to turn round in
the road .

22.
Is there anything going to be done about all the factories parking in our road? Most nights when I
come home there is nowhere to park, so I have to park up on the grass. It would be a good idea to
have residents parking only and people can park up to 3 hours, to stop the factories parking. it’s
getting ridiculous and we have nowhere to park. Yes I agree with having lines on the corners for
safety , But not coming round as far as you propose because of our parking and other neighbours
parking. As you want that as have a drive.
Thanks

23.
Resident complained about the amount of time the notices were up for

103

ADDITIONAL COMMENT Received via Councillor Kyrle.
I am a resident in berry close and I have heard from a neighbour about the plans to put double
yellow lines around berry close/crusader Road area.
I have concerns about this due to the fact we do not have adequate parking, I am one of the 4
houses in the close that has no allocated parking space. Double yellows would make things difficult
and stressful for 50% of us residents in the close. I understand the school drop off and pick ups are
causing a slight problem occasionaly however residents not being able to park their cars would cause
more inconvenience. Where are we supposed to go? Is there a way we could traffic wardens or
some sort of similar plan to monitor these times of day?

104

Agenda Item 14
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA
COMMITTEE
Monday, 13 June 2022
STREET NAMING REPORT
Report of the Street Naming & Numbering Officer
Recommendation(s)
It is recommended that the road names contained in this report are accepted by
the Committee.

Summary
The report recommends appropriate street names for a road’s located in the Boorley
Green development off Winchester Road following consideration of the options
presented by the developer.
Statutory Powers
Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847, section 65 and Public Health Act, 1925, section
19 and Local Government Act 1972, Section 111.

Strategic Implications
1. The provision of this development forms part of Eastleigh Borough Council’s
objective to create an excellent environment for all, including a distinct sense of
‘place’ and identity. This is achieved by enabling the construction of a clean and
attractive environment for residents to live in.

Introduction
2. The proposed names are associated with wildlife found on the site and are in
keeping with surrounding areas.

Street Naming proposal
3. The following Street names are proposed, Goldcrest Road, House Sparrow Way,
Chaffinch Gardens, Wren Walk, Pheasant Road, Blackcap Walk, Stock Dove
Gardens.

105

Considerations
4.

Construction work is under way on this development and, the Developer is
required to have an agreed name for the roads within the development to
enable the public utility apparatus to be installed and eventually for residential
addresses to be allocated to properties.

5.

No objections have been raised by the statutory consultees, to the names
listed in point 3 above.

Financial Implications
6.

Delay in naming this road could delay the completion of the development and
occupations. There is a Local Area Committee devolved budget for this work.

Risk Assessment
7.

Whilst a formal risk assessment has not been conducted, it is recognised that
the consequences of not naming these roads at this time poses a risk to the
timely completion of the adjacent properties and occupation.

Equality and Diversity Implications
8.

The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because


It is a response to a consultation by an external organisation.

Therefore, it is considered that for this decision the Equality Duty does not
need to be addressed and an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not
been carried out.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
9.

The proposal to name this road does have Climate change or environmental
implications. It will assist road users in making direct and efficient route
planning decisions.

Conclusion
10.

The names listed in point 3 above are recommended to be registered as the
names for the new roads.
Jo Summerton
Street Naming & Numbering Officers

106

Eastleigh Borough Council

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

24 May 2022
Jo Summerton
jo.summerton@eastleigh.gov.uk
1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
* List Background Papers or state None.

Eastleigh Borough Council

107

This page is intentionally left blank

ST

ER

RO

AD

Po
n

d

HE

290

oa
d-

292

292

291
291
SW

V

269
SW

218

1 to 7

V
217

219

218

BCP
216

222

213

223

28

E11
E10

30

242

241

SW

Public
e
Squar

29

56

55

V

BCP
241

45

44

45

SW

SW

240

46

Ne

45

BCP

wd

itch

V

B CP

53
TE
SCRE
GRAS
CE
PLIAN
FIRE AP AREA
ING
TURN

rs
e

FB

ou

fC

G
ol

657

ad

.1
m

V

47

V

658

V

47

ditc

h

654

isti

654

SW

V

51

50

49

New dit

V

SW

651

WIN

CHE
STE
R

V

328

82

80

65

65

60
65

58

58

354

SW

81

89

V

SW

R

l Site

V

Schoo

87

88

95

87

SW

SW

95

88

SW

SW

68

BCP

V

96

93

96

69

97

97

91
94

93

V

SW

98

92

98

SW

91

BCP
SW

72

73

74

SW

SW

101
154
153

152

V

154
V

SW

154

155

153

181

BCP

V

668

445

381

160

174

144

161

SW

141

166

162

V

V

141

168

184

182

166

167

184

191
190

183

142

6
d

V

20

454

456

V

455

110

V

121
124

V

SP

SW

134

BCP

134

BCP

123

122

121

120

125

126

127

132

133

135

SP

V

SP

117

117

129

131

135

130

SW

in
rk
Pa

BCP

130

V

1

441

442

442

443

n
at
io

440

SW

439

SW

443

e
at
G
Bu

s

V

SP

SP

V

SP

SP

SP

SP

SW

444

2

SP

SP

SP

1

437

V

437

37

39

SP

43
SP

41

SW

SP

SP

436

436

Ro

in
g

SP

SP

Pa

SP

SP

SP

io

n

SP

V

SP

St

at

SP

SP

rk

SP

488
477

484

483

483

483

491

490

494

506

512

496

495

495

511

6

467

498
499

V

508

510

482

464

509

510
V

V

SW

V

El Sub Sta

m
.8

568
568

546
549

V

Possible future site for pedestrian
bridge landing zone from southern
side of railway line

547

548

546
549

548

SW

482

465

546

547

548

V

479

V

SW

508

SW

V

V

SW

514

509

466
479

V

500

466

466

567
SW

545
545

514

SW

497

V

514

549

BCP

567

507

511

497

V

568
545

512 508

497

500

SW

544

544

515

507

478
478

567

515

506

507

496

480

V

544
550

513

512

498

499

516

516

516

506

510

V

509

480

404

V

465

479

405

31

V

SW

BCP

465
BCP

V

V
V

464

481

463

Attenuation
Basin

V

463

463

408

V

481

464

33

V

V

SW

SW

ING
MP
PU TION
A
ST

TE
SCRE
GRAS
IANCE
APPL
EA
FIRE
ING AR
TURN

V

V

Path

Pond

(um)

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

485

487

486

489

478

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP
SP

470

SP

SP

SP

513 505

487

492

550
V

516

494

513

477

543

Road 3

SP
SP

494

484

403

V

491

489

566
543

505
505

493

487

Open Space

566

542

505

501

493

495

468

542

543

503
502

484

482

401

27

551

515

476

V

5

SP

486

468

25

V
SW

502

SW

492

565

552

542

504

490

489

490

SW

SP

SP

ad

V

485

488

476

467

551

503

488

V

402

35

438

SP

501

V

551

504

502

565
541

517

517

467

23

V

SP

oa
d

SW

402

406

436

V

V

485

477

403

407

517
503

501

486

469

518

504

583

585

589

SW

21

BCP
540

541

517

472

476

29

437

588

591

471

469

403

405

406

583
586
587

491

471

553

475

475

470

468

404

407

SW

584

589

400

404

408

438

444

424

405

SW

587

588
590

493

469

423

406

407

591

492

402

419

592

592

SW

470

564

552

540

541

518
518

473

400

TE
SCRE
GRAS PLIANCE
AP
EA
FIRE
ING AR
TURN

539

519

584

594

563
564

552

473

471

399

400

401

540

V

BCP

472

4

539

585

586

563

554

538

V

474

472

Ro

ad

425

519
V

475

SW

399

399

420

409

SP

St

409

1

SW

435

435

11

3

SW

2

130

SP

Sh

410

439

129

SP

410

SW

582
582

582

594

590

1

401

10

584

585

586

587

588

554
553

520

519

593

593

375

2

421

Road

bl
m
a

115

444
SW

SP

SP

411

440

441

V

128

SP

SP

SP

411

410
409

576

575

589

554
553

V

474

473

422

SW

3

SW

127

131

417

411

SW

439

SP

g

r

u
eh

SP

103SW

411

12

417

417 418

4
441

SW

SW
SW

129
SP

104
116

115

418

SW

413

417

126

135
SW

114

114
114

418

V

440

15

414
412

4

SW

116

114

131

SP

104
113

128

103
104

113

119

V

105

105

118

125

SP
SP

116

SW

18

14

412

5

5

124

133

SP

115

V

416

574
590

537

564

V

434

19

16

418

5

ad

132

134

187

105

BCP

591

538

539

583

V

374

V

435

423

SW

413

412

Ro

103

SW

133

187

V

SP
SP

SP

112

120
SW

SP

V

SW

121

188
SP

413
412

06
113 1

112

119

120
122

189

SP

111

118

123

132

110

6

V

122

SW

189

SW

d

187

190

188

119

416

SW

oa

190
192

1
ad
Ro

186

123

07
112 1

V

118

124

416
415

6

R

186

415

414

106

191

4

17

7

106

107

592

577

13 no. at 250m²

562

536

538

SW

BCP

SW

V

SW

375

SW

424

423

426

9

8

425

572 573

593

521

562

555

536

578

595

374

6

434

424

426

426

425

571

19

434

432
433

581

555

537
520

Allotments

563

555

SW

b
Su
Stn

560

535

522

520

Open Space
L.E.A.P

581

576

579

594

17

375

578

577
574

570
596

SW

433
SW

415

V
414

108

426

416

456

V

107

191

427
SW

V

108

109

111

V

415

V
455

108

109

110

SW

SW

457

109

109
111

189
188

192

SW

SW

457

SW

167

V

185
186

428

573

581

V
V

556

537

Roa
d2

579

576

572

474

429

427

21

V

454

455

142

167

185

184

162

166

185

SW

453

456

163

165

SW

452

V

140

575

596

372

521

V

578

577

574

575

376
433

428

V

163

165

183

164

453

374

376

3
8

427

422

164
168

427

10

432

430

428

452

5

572

15

373

560 560

535

536

580

595

373

431

422

183
182
SW

457

138

139

373

432

429

22
138

140

377

377

SW

559

V
534

611

V

580

580

371

372

523 535

V

11
386

378
431

430

23

139

V

7
431

429

451

454

458

377
376
378

522

V

611

610

534

571

370

387

9

SW

430

451

371

V

558

562

579
571

570

595

V

522

V

573

9

556

521

569

596

V

556

SW

2

5

369

V

534

609

609

V

559

557

557

533
533

569

368

558

557

532

524

612

V

7
370

523

612

V

532

612

608

SW

SW

368
369

378

379

V

452

453

458

SW

V

462

459

459

458

142

165

SW

V

143

459

136

137
SW

162

24

421

174

143

139

140

380

12

V

SW

379

599

598

569

371
372

388

Road 2

600

V

3

390
389

29

380

421

169

163

460

6

164

SW

168

141

430

449

451

460
136

137

4

379

380

SW

380

431

d

170

161

460

138

150

143

175
SW

137

149

V

SW

381

Ro

ad

oa

173

SW

11

389
388

611

559

V

SW

533

523

607

570

369
370

30

SW

449
449

388

31

382

15
381

450

150

144

144

V

462

R

169

182

160

461

450

175

161

SW

387
386

386

613

613

608

558

V

SW

367

391

32
389

3

145

174

169

136

150

176

173
175

145

160

176

450

420

171

170

176

448

462

461
461

420

173

SW

419

170

SW

146

Road

V

366

368

ad

159

Ro

145

159

oa

149

159

392

390

387

SW

382

381

448
SW

ad
1

BCP

V

149

391

365

601

V

532

610

610
597

367

V

148

393

390

33

BCP

SW

383

V

148

172

25

367

Ro

146

SW

385
384

382

148

147

V

447

447

V

147

158

SW

171

192

SW

146

158

383

26

R

177 158

177

177
172

179

178

V

147

157

V

445

SW

V

419

SW

SW

BCP
V

V

1

34
391

384

385

598

597

364

384

SW

383

366

35

609
607

602

600

599

315

365

365

28

V

385

157

180

172

446

22
363

36

V

V

V

531

525

614

613

603
606

314

20

364

BCP

446

BCP

178

171

itch
ng
d

156

180
179

363

615

605
604

602
601

531
524

614

606
SW

530

524

608

603

599

V

616

605
604

314

362

385

27

isti

157

668

Ex

179
178

155

L.
E.
A.
P.

V

V

156

180

R

445

155

V

V

598

Footpath /Cycleway access from
Winchester Road subject to
separate application.to

530

531

607

600

SW

615

606

SW

601

626

597

614

617

603

530

615
616

SW

626

316

561

526

525

617

618

602

315

394

624

561
525

SW

604

622

623

316

313

392

561
V

617

616

620
605

621

626

SW

364

394

37

317

316

315

363

392

38

625
625

317

314

527

SW

618

SW

624

623

SW

384

668

V

16
18

526
526

618

623

625

312

361

393

527

622

317

313

SW

527

318

312

393

395

181

361

60
3SW

SW

395
396

156

181

396

39

L.A.P.

BCP

529

643

644

644

624

311

362

40

SW

V

319

SW

313

12

362

645

619

312

361

394

646

619

621

343

311

14

V
620

622

318

311

529

V

318

398
397

642

V
V

344

310

359

395

397

BCP

101

BCP

320

SW

645

SW

320

310

360

100

SW

102

153

SW

310

359

396

398

528

627
646

320

319

360

41
SW

529

SW

642

643

359

358

V

73

152

75

V

644

V

343

10

397

V
SW

528

642

649

621

309

357

67

74

639

645

646

627

308

8

358

648

647

641

319

309

SW

74

343

345

308

357

67

75

73

102
101

151

75

SW

SW

90

72

SW

99
102

151

SW

72

100 99

99 100

90

151

98

640
641

638

643

309

358

356

640
641

636

346

308

357

398

V

639

640

637
649

321

627

345

307

306

4

355

SW

344

345

6

71

344

347

307

71
71

90

639

638

SW

635

647

648

SW

346

307

356

638

637

647

SW

321

306

BCP

V

151

SW

68

97

634

628

321

305

355

70

92

152

68

633

629

628

322

SW

356

67

637
636

648

V

355

SW

342

BCP

348

2

70

70

96

69

69

342

346

304

95
69

347

305

94

88

649

322

342

SW

348

350
305
349
306

304

SW

SW

342

349
303

636

632

323

628

322

347
348

302

2

V

349

303

d
oa

V
V

631

629

341

351

304

302

V

V

635

341

350

V

V

350

V

634

323

341

351

V

635

323

57

V

89

340
351

352

V

633

340

340

303

V

634

632

SW

339
341

57

SW

324

629

354

66

82

631

630

BCP

354

302

SW

324

338

V

336

352

352

80

87
SW

BCP

57

66

82

85 86

64

81

SW

86

80

64

353

Sub
Stn

59

58

79

335

353

59

66

339

324

s

64

81

83

V

632

630

633

339
337

V

631

325

la

79

79

83

SW

326

338
336

353

SW

nd

337

V

V

338

335

V

61

327

ng

SW

84

V
630

3

83

SW

V
SW

Lo

60

V

328

m

h

V

78

78

337
SW

V

78

85

336

334

S

85

335

333

V

M

63

63

651

V

SW

V

way

63

59

61

SW

Cycle

62

SW

325

ath /

60

62

329

Footp

77

V

326

31
.4

84

SW

77

330

ad

77
84

ng
650

V

62
V

V

SW

61

333

V

325

334

Ro

V

651

V

S
St ub
n

B CP

650

652

ditc

V

7

327

331

653

SW

Ex
isti

76

328

SW

652

Eve
rgre
ens
15

76

327

332

653
SW

76

329

330

51

Pe

V
SW

ROA

D

329

330

331

658

650

V

331

332

SW

652

ch

52

657

653

654

Ex

52

50

48

655

655

52
V

49

31

655

ng

V

658

SW

48

Ro

V

53

49 50

46

1

V

L.A.P.
656

657

53

47
48

656

656

5

Road 2

46

V

ou

V
55

56

243

242

663
663

659

SW

43

TE
SCRE
GRAS
IANCE
APPL
EA
FIRE
ING AR
TURN

SW

SW

V

243

240

h
659

54

SW

239

31

44

662

663

16

234

235

660

29

SW

42

43

44

30

Br

1

yn

43

659
662

32

SW

54

664

663

29

SW

41
240 2

239

55

V

V

233

234

235

V

33

664

663

30

V

k
oo
len
d
in

en

239

244

243

242

248

248

35

232

664

31

35

40
V
SW

SW

BCP

ng

246

SW

40

231

233

V
244

32

De

245

36
36

665

ad
1

31

41

42

V

BCP

232

235

245

Ro

32

B
230

661

33

SW

V

B

231

34

y

248

665

Co My
tta rtle
ge

245

246

247

247

230

233

236

V

BCP

35-40

41

232

234

SW

666

666

665

37

ditc

237
246

33

34
39

ting

238

247
SW

38

231

Exis

SW

E7

662

st

230

236

BC P

SW

E8

666

9

237

Cycles

1

236

re

229

V

662

To
r

V

1

Bins

Ro
ad

229

1

229

E9

662

SP
SP

SP
SP

SP

ETL

SP
SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP

SP
SP

SP
SP

SP

SP
SP

SP

SP

m

)

SP

e

Path

He

dg

Land to the north west of
Boorley Green, Botley, Southampton

Pa

En

d

th

St

at

(u

io

n

Def

Phase 3,
Planning Layout
9

5

TC
B

ETL

37

41
29

23

EN

24

N
LA

30

CRESCENT
ARDINGLY

SE
LO
TT
C
14

LLE

9

20

ENS

MA

S

21

UR
EH

4

MALVERN GARD

8

12

18

L
MB
HA

43

ST

36
14

5

109

17

0m

11

17

OR

TH

37

20m

40m

60m

1:1000 @ A0

DGP

August 2019

Phase 3 Layout

P1388.3000

B

AAP
PLANNING

rm

667
V

Fa

203

238

The Laurels

202

238

E12

3

667

SW

237

33

V

203

250

E6

V

Servi
ce str
ip

667

MADDOXFORD WAY

BCP

E

LAN

19

E5
D1

202

SW

E4
D2

AR
PE

D3

ORD
OXF
ADD

SE

E3
D4

V
V

Gan
na
Cot way
tage

249

228

Bins
E2

D5

V

e

252

251

BCP

228

252

250

Bench

D6

V

228

Cycles

E1

V

IANCE
APPL
FIRE
EA
ING AR
TURN

203

675-680

Bins

D

249

D12
18

V

204
SW

D10

19

M

LO
EC
E
TR

B CP

204

253

251

Bench

D9

1

201

V

249

D8

D11

200

260

Bench

D7

(P

202

18

201

260

SW

19

V

253

20

200

rry

V

11

Bench

H)

199

201

251

4

669-674

C
he

258
250

18

335

Cycles

Tr
ee

260

18

21

205

257

259

259

204

Future local
centre

SW

20

ar

252

21

199

ta
ub S
El S

205

200

207

205

3

SW

22

The

E
SPAC

2

RoBa3
d3-54B

ns

OPEN
SW

19
Cycles

195

ster

thor
Haw

253

256

257
258

1

22

194
194

199

che

20

Bins

SW

206

256

Win

4

.6
m

258

259

4

21

SW

207

SW

257
SW

195

3

House

SW

26

193

2

29

208

1
17

17

25

23-28

193

BCP

16
17

SW

m
pi

V

196

25

ne

254

8
193-19

196

206

V

Bins

SW

s

Longacre

209

208

Cycle

16

22

24

197

209
207

24
V

n

V

255

16

23

198

197

io

209

255

256

23

198
SW

210

208

254

21

Co
m

255

V

28

254

SW

15

m
on

27

V

SW

15

9

27
210
SW

V

SW

SW

26

210

227

261

301

SW

V

9

V

SW

SW

262

8

15

10

9
V

E
SPAC
OPEN

227

V

SW

TOTAL

4
3

SW

V

SW

227

262

7
1 2

211
226

262

14

V

226

263SW
261

5 6
5

11

225

280

14

212

226

105

8

14

10
10

225

261

280

7

13
211

213

224

263

279

SW

12

211

225

264

280

SW

212

224

264
279

V

11

212

214

223
264

263

279

7

214

213

5
278 26

V

215

224

222
265

266

V

214

265

278

13

g

266

278

6
12
SW

Lo
n

266

V

V

216

m

277

13

6

215

223
221

12

V

5

222

220

267

V

216

at

217

277

.3

277

215

St

221

267

28

267

268

Ap
pl

220

268
268

276

V

217

SW

Gainsborough
Cottages

276

Pu

276

218

219

219

Braxells House

269

Co O
tta ak
ge

275

275

236
1

House

269

V

7
1
2
2
39
1
16
4
7
2
1
2

TOTAL

im
Lo os
dg a
e

270

B3
35
4

M

270

odge

292

291

290

290

1 Bed Flat @ 540 sqft
1 Bed Flat @ 700/587 sqft (1 x wheelchair)
2 Bed Flat @ 760 sqft
2 Bed Flat @ 833/719 sqft (1 x wheelchair)
2 Bed House @ 879 sqft
2 Bed House @ 879 sqft
3 Bed House (5p) @ 1019 sqft
3 Bed House (6p) @ 1160 sqft
3 Bed House (6p) @ 1160 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1196 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1196 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1160 sqft

84

Braxells
L

271
274 270
275

274

SW

143

he

271

SW

nch
est
er
R

TOTAL

Block D

2
2C
3
3S
3S2
4A
4B
4D

49

Bu
s

SW

274

Wi

N o.

SE
CLO
D
R
A
CH
OR

293

294
293

289

272

273

2
4
2
4
2
2
2
2
2
29
3
10
7
18
10
1
3
2

Housetype

su
es

293

289

271

ra
i

294

294

288
272

273

1 Bed Flat @ ave. 602 sqft
2 Bed Flat @ ave. 721 sqft
1 Bed Flat @ ave. 596 sqft
2 Bed Flat @ ave. 723 sqft
2 Bed Flat @ 720 sqft
1 Bed Maisonette @ 618/560 sqft
2 Bed Maisonette @ 721/814 sqft
1 Bed Maisonette @ 700/587 sqft (1 x wheelchair)
2 Bed Maisonette @ 833/719 sqft (1 x wheelchair)
2 Bed House @ 879 sqft
2 Bed House @ 879 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1019 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1019 sqft
3 Bed Townhouse @ 1178 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1070 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1070 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1160 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1219 sqft

tta
ge

SW

n

295
289

288

D

V

27SW2

Block B1
Block B1
Block C
Block C
2BF
1BM
2BM
1BMW
2BMW
2
2A
3
3A
3T
3S
3S1
4
4S

Br

V

287

V

N o.

Co

6
288 29

287

Housetype

Code

Is

286

286

Code

a

V

295

rts

2
2
26
2
8
8
1

re
e

285

St

295

Po
nd

Cl
ub

d

an

Ho
te
l

1 Bed Maisonette @ 700/587 sqft (1 x wheelchair)
2 Bed Maisonette @ 833/719 sqft (1 x wheelchair)
2 Bed House @ 879 sqft
2 Bed House @ 879 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1019 sqft
3 Bed Townhouse @ 1178 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1070 sqft

et

296

ub

296

297

El
S

V

287

285

284

V

1BMW
2BMW
2
2C
3
3T
3S

Affordable

ax
el
ls

284

SW

V

N o.

297

299

286

297

298

273

Housetype

196

298
298

300

283

284

Code

Gainsbo
rough

301
285

283

Fa
rm

283

Affordable

Affordable

C

W

Co
t

V

152

94

282

3
9
20
23
21
19
4
11
11
14
13
4

2 Bed House @ 864 sqft
2 Bed House @ 864 sqft
2 Bed House @ 873 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1045 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1100 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1063 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1262 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1309 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1398 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1623 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1407 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1419 sqft

13

282

Morley
Morley
Beeley
Melbourne
Ingleby
Downshire
Edale
Darley
Calver
Ashton
Ridgeway
Sterndale

5

282

MY
MY1
B
M
IG
D
E
DR
C
A
R
S

N o.

1

299

V

25
9
7
7
14
1
3
4
3
1
4
4
8
4

2 Bed House @ 873 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1045 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1100 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1063 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1262 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1309 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1398 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1623 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1407 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1407 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1419 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1280 sqft
1 Bed Maisonette @ 658/560 sqft
2 Bed Maisonette @ 722/798 sqft

2

V

300

Beeley
Melbourne
Ingleby
Downshire
Edale
Darley
Calver
Ashton
Ridgeway
Ridgeway
Sterndale
Walton

Housetype

4

299

301

281

Code

4a

SW

N o.

6

300
V

Housetype

ni
s

Br
ax
el
ls
ta
ge

301

RM3 S c h e d u l e o f A c c o m m o d a t i o n .
Private

8

281

281

D rai
n

26
.5
m

O
R
K
BY S P
N. RO
B. VI
G D
ED
.

V

ck

Pa
rk

Tra

B
M
IG
D
E
DR
C
A
R
R3
S
W1
1BM
2BM1

y

RKS
T WO
TMEN
TREA

Morley
Morley
Beeley
Beeley
Melbourne
Melbourne
Ingleby
Downshire
Downshire
Edale
Darley
Calver
Ashton
Ridgeway
Ridgeway
Ridgeway
Sterndale
Walton

2
4
1
4
14
10
27
4
7
18
1
26
23
15
8
15
6
1
9
1

tle

Track

1 Bed Flat @ ave. 602 sqft
2 Bed Flat @ ave. 721 sqft
2 Bed House @ 864 sqft
2 Bed House @ 864 sqft
2 Bed House @ 873 sqft
2 Bed House @ 873 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1045 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1045 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1100 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1063 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1063 sqft
3 Bed House @ 1262 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1309 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1398 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1623 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1407 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1407 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1407 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1419 sqft
4 Bed House @ 1280 sqft

Code

Bo

Block B
Block B
MY
MY1
B
B1
M
M1
IG
D
D1
E
DR
C
A
R
R1
R2
S
W

N o.

Co
un
try

Housetype

Code

V

Phase 2 S c h e d u l e o f A c c o m m o d a t i o n .
Private

Phase 1 Schedule of Accommodation.
Private

Te
n

te
ative rou
Altern tpath /
for foo
y link
cyclewa

12

in

12a

D ra

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Monday, 13 June 2022
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Committee:
(1)

Allocate £2,130 towards the funding of Friday Night Football sessions at
Botley Recreation Ground from this Committee’s revenue budget;

(2)

Allocate £2,000 towards the funding of Park Sport 2022 from this Committee’s
revenue budget;

(3)

Approve the grant of £300 to Berrywood School from this Committee’s
revenue budget;

(4)

Approve the allocation of £52,541 (not including indexation) of developer’s
contributions from Boorley Park to install a new play area at Chancellor Park,
Boorley Park. Also, to ask Cabinet to support the forward funding of the play
area, if required, as detailed in the report and in line with the Council’s
infrastructure first approach;

(5)

Allocate the Developer’s Contribution of £20,135 towards improvements to
Moorgreen Meadows SSSI;

(6)

Approve the expenditure of £2,000 towards five dual-waste bins at Boorley
Park from this Committee’s revenue budget;

(7)

Note the expenditure of £780 from this Committee’s revenue budget towards
two dual-waste bins in Hedge End;

(8)

Note the expenditure of £1,265 from this Committee’s revenue budget towards
highway infrastructure repairs;

(9)

Note the expenditure of £531 from this Committee’s revenue budget towards
Hatch Farm play equipment repairs;

(10)

Approve the expenditure of £5,500 from the Committee’s revenue budget as a
contribution towards the Young People’s Wellbeing Service for 2022/23;

(11)

Approve expenditure of £4,080 from the Committee’s revenue budget for six
flower towers to be located in Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB);
AND

111

(12)

Allocate the Developer’s Contributions of £27,121 towards Eastleigh Town
Centre public realm improvements.

Summary
This report has been compiled following discussion with local stakeholders, Councillors
and specialist staff and it identifies projects that will meet local need. The
recommendations are to be funded using a mixture of developer’s contributions and this
Committee’s budget.
Statutory Powers
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011

Strategic Implications
1.

The identified projects will assist the Council in achieving its corporate aims. In
particular, the Friday Night Football and Park Sport initiatives will help to
Enable Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing as will the work of the Young
People’s Wellbeing Service.

2.

The Boorley Park play area and the litter bins will support an Excellent
Environment; and the Moorgreeen Meadows improvements will support
Developing Green Infrastructure.

3.

The flowers towers and public realm improvements in Eastleigh Town Centre
will contribute to Reinvigorating Town and Local Centres.

4.

All of the projects are in line with Local First as they reflect local need.

Friday Night Football
5.

The Committee has previously provided funding for the Friday Night Football
sessions at Botley based on a service level agreement with Botley Parish
Council and the Borough Council’s Health and Wellbeing team.

6.

These sessions are very popular with young people and the Committee is
therefore requested to formally approve the annual allocation of £2,130 from
its revenue budget.

Park Sport
7.

112

A report providing details of the Council’s Park Sport 2021 programme has
been circulated to Councillors and this outlined how the programme of
activities successfully took place last year, amidst continuing restrictions.

Eastleigh Borough Council

8.

It is proposed that Park Sport 2022 will go ahead this Summer and
consideration is currently being given to further improvements to the scheme
to facilitate increased inclusivity. Details of the proposals will be shared with
Councillors in due course.

9.

The Committee is requested to approve the allocation of £2,000 from its
revenue budget to provide continued support for the delivery of Park Sport
2022.

Community Grant Funding
10.

The Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) Community and Youth
Grants application process for 2021-22 was concluded in March and awards
presented to the qualifying applicants. A late grant application was received
from Berrywood School for £300 towards equipment to facilitate activities in
the new creative arts centre. The Community Grants Panel has considered
the grant request and it is recommended that the grant of £300 be awarded.

Boorley Park
11.

As mentioned above, the Boorley Park development continues to be built out
and areas of public open space are being completed. A second LEAP
(Locally Equipped Area for Play) play area is to be installed by Eastleigh
Borough Council on the open space known as Chancellor Park. It is
anticipated that this open space will be transferred to the Council later this
year. At present, £19,851 is available for the installation of the play area and
a further £52,541 is due from this development. This contribution is expected
shortly. It is recommended that the contribution of £52,541 is formally
allocated towards this project.

12.

To avoid delays to the project, should the contribution not be received prior to
the play area contract being awarded, it is recommended that the Committee
seeks to forward fund the contribution to enable the play area to be installed.
Any interest cost incurred before the developer contribution is received is
underwritten by the LAC, however it is anticipated that these costs will be met
by indexation on the developer’s contribution which is forecast to comfortably
exceed these costs. Should HEWEB LAC approve the recommendation, if
required, a recommendation will be taken to the next Cabinet meeting asking
Cabinet to underwrite the financial risks associated with forward funding. This
is in line with the Council’s forward funding policy to ensure an infrastructure
first approach.

Moorgreen Meadows Visitor Mitigation and Enhancements
13.

Managed by Eastleigh Borough Council, Moorgreen Meadows is a Site of
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and a Site of Importance for Nature
Conservation (SINC). It comprises a mix of unimproved wet meadows and
woodland. A popular dog walker venue, the use by visitors is having a
detrimental impact on the biodiversity habitats. In addition, the SSSI is
vulnerable to habitat degradation through limited management and disrupted
groundwater flow. It is therefore proposed that the following developer’s
Eastleigh Borough Council

113

contributions totalling £20,135 are formally approved for improvements to the
meadows to mitigate the impact of visitors, including a new footbridge, and
enhance the biodiversity value of the site:
DCO/15/76418Foreman Homes,
Land off Botley Road, West End
Receipt Date:11/12/2020

£7,445

DCF/15/77247BDW re Moorgreen
hospital, Botley Rd, West End
Receipt Date:18/11/2016

£12,690

Litter Bins
14.

As the Boorley Park housing development continues to be built out, there is a
need to increase the number of street bins to manage litter. The Committee is
requested to approve expenditure from the revenue budget for five dual
purpose bins totalling £2,000. The views of residents will be sought to ensure
the bins are installed in the most appropriate locations. As the site is currently
unadopted, the Head of Neighbourhood Services will discuss these locations
with the developers of Boorley Park. The responsibility for ensuring that the
bins are emptied would also be with the developers currently.

15.

Elsewhere in HEWEB, the Committee is requested to note the purchase of
two litter bins totalling £780 from the revenue budget for Kings Copse Road
and Wildern Lane footpath following requests from residents.

Highway Infrastructure
16.

The Committee is requested to note the revenue expenditure of £500 towards
the replacement of fencing along West End Road that was damaged during
Storm Eunice; together with £765 towards the replacement of missing
dragons teeth near Freegrounds Junior School in the interests of highway
safety.

Hatch Farm Play Equipment
17.

Due to recent vandalism, a piece of play equipment at Hatch Farm has had to
be closed to the public while a repair is undertaken. The Committee is asked
to note the expenditure of £531 from the revenue budget to carry out the
repair.

Young People’s Wellbeing Service
18.

114

The Young People’s Wellbeing Service (YPWS) incorporates the Teenage
Drop-In Centre (TADIC) at Hedge End Medical Centre and Eastleigh Youth
Counselling.

Eastleigh Borough Council

19.

TADIC is a charity and it provides a confidential and accessible service for
young people to empower them to make informed choices about their own
mental, emotional and physical health.

20.

The charity is governed by a Board of Trustees who oversee the service
provided by a team of health specialists ranging from doctors, sexual health
nurses and counsellors supported by an administration team.

21.

The service has continued throughout 2021/22 and has involved telephone,
online and face to face consultations. The majority of these consultations were
about contraceptive advice.

22.

A rolling 12-month service level agreement between this Committee on behalf
of Eastleigh Borough Council, Hedge End Town Council, Wildern School and
the YPWS outlines the parameters of the service. This service is funded
through the contributions from the two councils and Wildern School.

23.

Hedge End Town Council’s Clerk has confirmed that the Town Council will
continue to support a further 12 month’s funding (£5,500). This Committee is
asked to note the match funding for this service for 2022-23 of £5,500, taken
from the revenue budget.

Flower Towers
24.

Traditionally, this Committee has funded the installation of flower towers in the
three village/ shopping centres across HEWEB which have been consistently
well received by residents and business owners. The Committee is therefore
asked to note the revenue expenditure of £4,080 towards the installation and
maintenance of six flower towers during the period of June to October.

Eastleigh Town Centre Environmental Improvements
25.

During the consideration of the planning application for the construction of the
retail unit occupied by Pets at Home in Hedge End Retail Park, a retail impact
assessment was undertaken that identified a detrimental impact on Eastleigh
Town Centre. When the planning application was approved in 2017, a
financial contribution was secured specifically to deliver environmental
improvements to the town centre to enhance the visitor experience. The
Eastleigh Town Centre public realm improvements project is progressing, and
it is therefore recommended that the following developer’s contribution are
approved for this project:
DCF/16/78310Land at Hedge End
Retail Park Receipt Date:21/08/2017

£27,121

Financial Implications
26.

All of the recommendations can be funded through the stated developers’
contributions and the Committee’s revenue budget as outlined.
Eastleigh Borough Council

115

Risk Assessment
27.

If these recommendations are not supported, the Committee’s ability to
respond to identified local need will be hampered. The lack of approved
funding would impact the ability for the projects and/or services to continue.
There is also a reputational risk to consider if the funding is not approved.

28.

In relation to the request to forward fund the Boorley Park play area if
required, while there is typically a potential financial risk to the Council with
forward funding projects, given that the trigger for the payment of developer’s
contributions has already been met, the risk in this case is minimal.

Equality and Diversity Implications
29.

The Equality Act is not directly relevant to the decision in this report because
each project current project, such as Friday Night Football and Park Sport
have bespoke assessments. The Young People’s Wellbeing Service is
accessible by all; and all of the Council’s projects are scoped in line with the
approved project management documentation and processes which includes
assessments of the equality and diversity implications.

30.

Therefore it is considered that for this decision the Equality Duty does not
need to be addressed and an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not
been carried out.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
31.

The proposed flower towers will be imported from the Netherlands as there
are none that can be suitably sourced more locally. They will contribute
negatively to climate change through their production, transport, weekly
watering throughout the summer and their eventual disposal. Consideration is
being given to more sustainable options in the future.

32.

The provision of litter bins at Boorley Park and elsewhere in HEWEB will
assist with maintaining a clean environment; and the improvements to
Moorgreen Meadows SSSI provide opportunities to protect and enhance a
habitat of biodiversity and environmental value.

33.

The continued support for active lifestyles and play for young people may
indirectly encourage a reduction in motorised vehicle use through providing
activities within walking distance of people’s homes and improving general
fitness.

Conclusion
34.

The Committee is requested to approve the recommendations which relate to
funding for local projects within the HEWEB area.
KITTY BUDDEN

116

Eastleigh Borough Council

LOCAL AREA MANAGER
Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

27 May 2022
Kitty Budden
02380 688418
kitty.budden@eastleigh.gov.uk
None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
Background Papers:
TADIC Hedge End Clinic Yearly Statistical Report – April 21-March 22;
Park Sport Report 2021, Eastleigh Borough Council

Eastleigh Borough Council

117

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 16
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Monday, 13 June 2022
APPOINTMENTS TO REGULATORY PANELS, OTHER GROUPS
AND OUTSIDE BODIES
Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendations
It is recommended that:
(1)

The nominations for 2022-23 municipal year appointments to regulatory
panels and other groups as set out in paragraph 6 are approved; and

(2)

The proposed nominations for 2022-23 municipal year appointments to
Outside Bodies, as set out in Appendix One, are approved.

Summary
In addition to attending Council meetings and other constituency work, Councillors and
some staff are required to sit as representatives of the Council on other organisations and
agencies known as Outside Bodies. Outside bodies are external organisations, including
formal or informal partnerships, to which the Borough Council is a party, which have
requested that the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a representative to
them or to which the Council expects to make appointments. Regulatory Panels are formal
decision-making panels required to deliver the Council’s statutory obligations. The other
groups comprise those established to share information or manage local initiatives.
Statutory Powers
The Local Government and Housing Act 1989, Local Government Act 2000, Localism Act
2011.

Strategic Implications
1.

This report relates to governance arrangements which underpin all the
Council’s Corporate Plan (2015-2025) objectives.

119

Introduction
2.

The Council appoints elected members, and in some instances staff, to
represent it on a range of Outside Bodies at a national and local level. Such
appointments ensure that the Council’s and residents’ interests are
represented within key agencies.

3.

The Council recognises the contribution outside organisations make to the
wider community and in the achievement of Council’s corporate priorities.

4.

Outside bodies are external organisations and partnerships which have
requested that the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a
representative to them. Participation in outside bodies:

5.

(i)

Contributes to the Borough Council’s strategic functions,
priorities or community leadership roles;

(ii)

Supports partnership and joint working; and

(iii)

Enables Councillors to gain and share knowledge and expertise.

All Councillors are eligible to be appointed as representatives of the Borough
Council on these groups. Councillors and staff appointed must respond to all
reasonable requests for information about the work of the outside body and
their participation in it. Councillors must consider the implications and
responsibilities of being involved with outside bodies.

Proposal
6.

This Committee is responsible for making Councillor appointments to
Regulatory Panels and other groups. The following nominations have been
made for Councillor representatives for the municipal year 22-23 and it is
recommended that these are approved as follows.
Regulatory Panels

Councillor nominations for 22-23

Licensing – to deal with issues not
covered by the Licensing Act 2003 or
the Gambling Act 2005

All members of the Committee to be
appointed to a pool from which any
three can be selected. (The requisite
training must be completed before
members can serve on a panel.)

Licensing Panels as appointed by full
Council for the purposes of the
Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling
Act 2005

Councillors Asman, Pretty and Welsh

Other Groups
Community Grants Sub-Group

120

Councillors Gomer, Garton (LAC

Eastleigh Borough Council

Chair), and Kinloch

7.

This Committee is also responsible for making Councillor appointments to
Outside Bodies within the Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area. A list
of outside bodies to which the Local Councillors make appointments, and the
recommended nominees can be found at Appendix One.

Financial Implications
8.

There are no financial implications associated with this decision.

Risk Assessment
9.

Councillors must consider the implications and responsibilities of being
involved with outside bodies as they must:
(i)

Continue to comply with the Borough Council’s Code of Conduct
when they are acting as a representative of the Council;

(ii)

Comply with the Code of Conduct of the outside body they are
appointed to, if one exists;

(iii)

Declare a personal interest in any business of the Borough
Council where it relates to a body they are appointed to by the
Borough Council.

10.

All Councillors are recommended to make sure that when they take up their
appointment with the outside body, they have access to the key documents
regulating the organisation such as its constitution or terms of reference to
ensure they are aware of what the body can and cannot do and receive a
briefing on the body or their role within it if necessary.

11.

There is a risk that appointments will not be made to all the outside bodies
which could hinder the Borough Council in furthering its interests and
priorities, and not develop the external facing role of Councillors.

Equality and Diversity Implications
12.

The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because:


It is a report making an appointment to an outside body.

Therefore it is considered that for this decision the Equality Duty does not
need to be addressed and an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not
been carried out.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications

Eastleigh Borough Council

121

13.

Councillors travelling to meetings via unsustainable means could result in an
increase in greenhouse gases. With increased opportunities for virtual
meetings, the need for travel is likely to be reduced. Councillors are
encouraged to travel sustainably and not to receive paper copies of agendas
where possible.

Conclusion
14.

The nomination of Councillor representatives to Regulatory Panels, other
groups and Outside Bodies supports the Borough Council in delivering its
statutory obligations and strengthens partnership and joint working.
Councillors’ participation in outside bodies contributes to the Council’s
strategic functions and priorities.

15.

The Committee is therefore asked to appoint to the roles listed in paragraph 6
and Appendix One and the appointments be recorded in the minutes.
KITTY BUDDEN
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

27 May 2022
Kitty Budden
02380 688418
kitty.budden@eastleigh.gov.uk
1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.
None.

122

Eastleigh Borough Council

Appendix One

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022-23
Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee
Name of Organisation:

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY YOUTH
PARTNERSHIP

2021-22
Representative(s):

Councillor R Gomer

Proposed Nomination:

Councillor R Gomer

Contact Officer:

Kitty Budden

Committee:

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

To co-ordinate youth provision across the local area

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

Young people

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

4 -6

Tuesdays, (6.30 pm for AGM only)
Midday meetings

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

A working knowledge of the HEWEB Youth Development
Plan. Background knowledge of youth services, youth club
provision and issues affecting young people aged 8 – 25.

Details of any training
provided:

None

Details of anticipated
workload:
e.g. will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Review of youth provision to take place in 2022-23;
Meetings and future reviews of youth provision.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Kitty Budden
Local Area Manager

Eastleigh Borough Council

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
2 months

123

Name of Organisation:

NORTH WHITELEY DEVELOPMENT FORUM

2021-22
Representative(s):

Cllr D Pretty

Proposed Nomination:

Cllr D Pretty

Contact Officer:

Mr D Blakemore

Committee:

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

Overview of emerging housing development for North
Whiteley. Ability to inform the master plan and highlight
potential impacts on Eastleigh Borough.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

Strategic planning of housing development;
Awareness of planning permissions and proposals in the
HEWEB area.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

4 (approx quarterly)

Tuesdays at 6pm, at the Solent Hotel,
Whiteley

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
One month

124

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Sound knowledge of proposed strategic housing
developments;
Appreciation of key proposals in the draft Eastleigh Local
Plan

Details of any training
provided:

Not applicable. Although briefings will be provided by key
officers and developers’ representatives

Details of anticipated
workload:
e.g. will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Attendance at Forum meetings and any associated
consultation events;
Reading of all papers and draft documents associated with
the Forum;
Providing feedback to other Members and officers as
required.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Mr D Blakemore
Winchester City Council
City Offices
Colebrook Street
WINCHESTER SO23 9LJ
01962 848217

Eastleigh Borough Council

Name of Organisation:

WILDERN COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

2021-22
Representative(s):

Cllr C Garton

Proposed Nomination:

Cllr C Garton

Contact Officer:

Kitty Budden

Committee:

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

Oversee Community Use Programme. Receive reports from
managers and review financial performance of the D.@art
and Leisure Centre, Agree and monitor an Annual Service
Plan. Support extension of community activities on campus.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

Development and sustainability of the leisure centre, D.@rt
Centre and the Berry Theatre.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

4 maximum

Evenings - 6.00 pm - 8.00 pm

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
Annual programme

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Interest in: Arts and/or sports development and community
education. Particular interest in community-based theatres
and film an advantage.

Details of any training
provided:

Training and support can be given according to present
level of knowledge.

Details of anticipated
workload:
e.g. will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Minimum requirement is attendance at meetings and
background reading of papers. Occasional attendance at
events and official openings desirable.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Kitty Budden
Local Area Manager

Eastleigh Borough Council

125

Name of Organisation:

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY BUSINESS
COMMUNITY GROUP

2021-22
Representative(s):

Cllr D Pretty

Proposed Nomination:

Cllr D Pretty

Contact Officer:

Kitty Budden

Committee:

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

The Group will provide the collective business voice for the
HEWEB area. It will become a formal consultee on local
issues.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

These issues have been previously identified by the Group:
Planning (policy and developments)
Transport
Traffic
Communications including social media
Recycling
Training (skills)

No of meetings per year:
As required

Usual time of meeting(s):
Mondays 7.45 - 9.30am

126

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
One month

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Experience of working in the private, public or voluntary
sector is desirable.

Details of any training
provided:

None

Details of anticipated
workload:
e.g. will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Meetings only

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Kitty Budden
Local Area Manager

Eastleigh Borough Council

Name of Organisation:

BOORLEY GREEN WORKING GROUP

2021-22
Representative(s):

Cllr R Kyrle/ Cllr D Kinloch

Proposed Nomination:

Cllr R Kryle/ Cllr D Kinloch

Contact Officer:

Kitty Budden

Committee:

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

Working in partnership with representatives from Botley
Parish Council, the Developers’ Consortium and Eastleigh
Borough Council officers to maximise the community benefit
from the Boorley Park development and to ensure its
integration into the wider Botley area.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

These issues have been identified by the Group: Design and delivery schedules for housing and community
facilities;
Reports from the Neighbourhood Community Worker;
Future management and Section 106 payments for the
development.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

Every 6 – 8 weeks: To
recommence in 2022

Evening: To be confirmed

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Experience of working in the private, public or voluntary
sector is desirable.

Details of any training
provided:

None

Details of anticipated
workload:
e.g. will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Meetings only

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Kitty Budden
Local Area Manager

Eastleigh Borough Council

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
One month

127

128

Name of Organisation:

HATCH FARM WORKING GROUP

2021-22
Representative(s):

Cllr J Asman/ Cllr B Tennent/ Cllr R Gomer

Proposed Nomination:

Cllr J Asman/ Cllr B Tennent/ Cllr R Gomer

Contact Officer:

Siobhan Strand

Committee:

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

Working in partnership with representatives from West End
Parish Council and Barnsland Residents’ Association along
with Eastleigh Borough Council officers to maximise the
community benefit from the Hatch Farm development and
adjacent facilities at Barnsland.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

These issues have been identified by the Group – design of
the play area; feasibility and delivery of a skate park, future
management of the open space and connectivity of
footpaths and cycle routes.

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

At least every 8 weeks
dependent on projects

Daytime

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Experience of working in the private, public or voluntary
sector is desirable.

Details of any training
provided:

None

Details of anticipated
workload:
e.g. will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Meetings and possibly attendance at public consultations.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Siobhan Strand
Assistant Local Area Manager

Eastleigh Borough Council

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
One month

Name of Organisation:

DEER PARK COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

2021-22
Representative(s):

n/a

Proposed Nomination:

Cllr C Garton

Contact Officer:

Kitty Budden

Committee:

Hedge End, West End and Botley Local Area Committee

Terms of reference
and objectives of
organisation:

Oversee Community Use Programme. Receive reports from
managers and review financial performance of the facilities;
Agree and monitor an Annual Service Plan;
Support development of community activities on campus.

Key areas of interest and
topical Issues for the
organisation:

Development and sustainability of the facilities available for
community use

No of meetings per year:

Usual time of meeting(s):

4 maximum

To be confirmed

Normal amount of
notice given of
meeting(s):
Annual programme

Desired skills, qualities,
knowledge or experience
Members should have:

Interest in: Sports development and community education.

Details of any training
provided:

Training and support can be given according to present
level of knowledge.

Details of anticipated
workload:
e.g. will member attend
meeting only or be
involved in other work?

Minimum requirement is attendance at meetings and
background reading of papers. Occasional attendance at
events and official openings desirable.

Name and address of
contact for organisation:

Kitty Budden
Local Area Manager

Eastleigh Borough Council

129

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 17
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
Monday, 13 June 2022
ANNUAL REVIEW
Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Committee consider and agree the contents of this
report.

Summary
This report highlights the main areas of work undertaken by the Hedge End, West End and
Botley (HEWEB) Local Area Committee in 2021/22.
It also includes a summary of the Chair’s annual review for 2021/22. This review was
presented at the Annual Assemblies hosted by Hedge End Town Council and West End
Parish Council. The Botley Parish Council Annual Assembly was cancelled.
Statutory Powers
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011

Strategic Implications
1.

The Committee’s work contributes to the achievement of the Council’s
Corporate Plan 2015-2025 and the corporate themes, including Local First.
The projects and service level agreements outlined in Appendix One highlight
the Committee’s contribution towards a Healthy Community, a Green
Borough, and a Prosperous Place. The Committee has continued to allocate
grant funding to community groups and support local initiatives. The
Committee has approved financial contributions towards projects seeking to
meet local need and reflect the Committee’s priorities as identified in the
Committee’s Area Action Plan. The Chair’s review in Appendix Two also
illustrates the Committee’s work in line with the Corporate Plan and the Area
Action Plan.

Introduction
2.

This report provides an outline of the work undertaken by the Hedge End,
West End and Botley Local Area Committee for the period 1 April 2021- 31
March 2022. The details can be found in Appendix One.

131

3.

The Chair has written an annual review which was presented at the annual
assemblies at Hedge End Town Council and West End Parish Council. The
Botley Parish Council assembly was cancelled. This review is contained in
Appendix Two and it provides some more detail about the work of the
Committee during this year.

Financial Implications
4.

There are no financial implications associated with this report.

Risk Assessment
5.

There are no identifiable risks.

Equality and Diversity Implications
6.

The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because:


It does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of
opportunity, or fostering good relations between different people.

Therefore, it is considered that for this decision the Equality Duty does not
need to be addressed and an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not
been carried out.
7.

Climate Change and Environmental Implications
There are no climate change or environmental implications associated with
the report’s recommendation.

Conclusion
8.

Councillors are invited to consider this report.
KITTY BUDDEN
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date:
Contact Officer:
Tel No:
e-mail:
Appendices Attached:

27 May 2022
Kitty Budden
02380 688418
kitty.budden@eastleigh.gov.uk
2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D
The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

132

Eastleigh Borough Council

None.

Eastleigh Borough Council

133

APPENDIX ONE
(HEWEB REVIEW PERIOD 1 APRIL 2021 – 31 MARCH 2022)
COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Number of Committee meetings convened
Public participation (speakers in Committee)
Additional Members’ meetings
AGENDA ANALYSIS
Planning applications considered
Other reports
Exempt items
REPORTS APPROVED
Financial Management x 1
Community Grants 2021/22
Naming of Street x 1
Various Roads Traffic Regulation Order
Local Area Action Plan 2022/23
Appointment to Outside Bodies
Annual Review 2020/21
REVENUE GRANTS AWARDED
Revenue grant value
ANNUAL SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS (SLAs)
Hedge End Teenage Drop-In Centre
Friday Night Football 2020-21
Direct Services roundabout annual rolling maintenance
Wildern Community Management Committee
Berrywood Meadows Direct Services maintenance
Parksport Summer Holidays activities
APPROVED NON-ROUTINE PROJECTS £1,000+
Expenditure from revenue budget towards Hedge End Unwrapped
Expenditure towards replacement bins
Approval of additional spend to remove Midlands Estate planter
Expenditure towards replacement of barrier at Charterhouse Way
Approval of additional spend to complete the Berry Theatre Gates
Expenditure from revenue budget for relocation of the speed indicator
Device
Funding towards Friday Night Football at Botley Recreation Ground
Funding towards Park Sport 2022
Expenditure from revenue budget as contribution towards the Young
People’s Wellbeing Service for 2022/23
EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
Capital expenditure – actual for 2021/22
Revenue expenditure – actual for 2021/22
Total Revenue reserves – committed/ uncommitted

134

Eastleigh Borough Council

2021-22
3
3
6
2
12
0

£7,255
£5,730
£2,130
£19,300
£53,830
£1,500
£2,000
£2,850
£1,480
£1,400
£1,110
£8,810
£3,000
£2,130
£2,000
£5,730

TBC
£656,146
£188,834

APPENDIX TWO
HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE CHAIR’S
REVIEW 2021/2022
Last year, I started this annual review making reference to the Covid pandemic and
paying tribute to the many local people and the NHS who have helped others within
the Hedge End, West End and Botley area. Little did we realise that a year later we
would still be experiencing the impacts of the pandemic. While the extensive
vaccination program has allowed more normal life to resume, I remain impressed by,
and grateful to, all the local people and the NHS who continue to support our
communities and vulnerable residents.
This has been my fourth year as the Chair of the Hedge End, West End and Botley
Local Area Committee, and while the pandemic has presented further challenges,
much has been achieved – it gives me great pleasure to be able to share some of
the successes of the past year with you now.
Itchen Valley Country Park:
This wonderful local country park continues to provide a much-valued space for
enjoyment, relaxation, and adventure for its visitors. The introduction of the first
elements of the Memorial Walk has given an opportunity for reflection which is
already valued by many. Following the approval of £3.3 million funding in July, a
range of exciting improvements are proposed for the park, including upgraded play
equipment, improvements to trails and enhanced parking. A planning application is
anticipated later this year to seek approval for improvements to the existing buildings
and the erection of a new building at High Hill Field for use by visitors. The Park’s
staff continue to deliver an interesting and wide range of events and, as Mayor, I am
delighted that the Park will be hosting a ‘Wellies and Walkies’ event for my chosen
charity, Mountbatten Hampshire, on Saturday 2nd April.
Woodhouse Lane:
In October, I had the pleasure of cutting the ribbon for the official opening of the
brand-new Deer Park Secondary School which opened to pupils in September 2021.
The work to further enhance these facilities with the sports hall extension and
Artificial Turf Pitch has been progressing well and is expected to be available for
community use in September 2022. With the school forming part of the Wildern
Academy Trust, we look forward to continuing our strong partnership with the
Academy and building on that foundation with the team at Deer Park.
The creation of three community use grass football pitches at Berrywood Fields has
also progressed well, as I saw recently when I visited the site. These combined
projects will provide Hedge End Rangers with a place that they can call home
instead of having to travel to many different facilities for training and matches, as well
as benefiting other community clubs.
Highway infrastructure works for the school and the Woodhouse Meadows
development site are being delivered as part of the ongoing phase 1 Botley Bypass

Eastleigh Borough Council

135

works that are under constructed at present and are anticipated to be completed
later in 2022.
Shamblehurst Lane Crossing:
While considerably smaller in scale, the provision of a pedestrian crossing at
Shamblehurst Lane has been a priority for the HEWEB Committee for some time
and I’m pleased to say that this project has now been completed improving safety for
local residents.
Hatch Farm:
Continuing the success of the play area at Hatch Farm which is enjoyed by many, a
contract has been awarded to Fearless Ramps to design and deliver a wheeled
sports area in this development. Working with West End Parish Council, young
people and potential users have been consulted and the final design consultation
took place on the 9th March. This is an exciting project for families in the area and
our keen skaters and scooter users, and I’m looking forward to seeing the final
design take shape.
Boorley Park:
I was pleased to be able to open the play area and Multi Use Games Area at Boorley
Park in July, and see lots of children, including some from the Boorley Park primary
school enjoying the playground.
While the community buildings are not yet open, the snagging issues that prevented
the buildings from being transferred have been resolved and the legal transfer of the
buildings and sports pitches to Eastleigh Borough Council has now been completed.
The Council is working closely with Botley Parish Council to enable their swift
transfer to them and to support the preparations for opening the buildings to the
public as soon as possible.
Public Art Projects:
A number of public art projects have been delayed due to impacts arising from the
pandemic. However, I’m delighted to be able to say that the installation of new gates
at the Berry Theatre entrance has recently been completed. Other projects in Hedge
End and West End are progressing and it is anticipated will be delivered later in
2022.
Community Project Funding and Grants:
Being Mayor this year, I have had the pleasure of visiting many organisations across
the Borough that provide fantastic support for our communities and residents. As a
committee, we have continued to support local organisations in the HEWEB area by
funding grants with over £10,000 awarded.
In addition, the Committee has approved funding for a wide range of projects across
the local area, including the projects mentioned above. We have provided new litter
bins following requests from residents and have continued to fund replacement
street name plates and six flower towers in our village and town centres.

136

Eastleigh Borough Council

As Councillors, we are frequently contacted by residents with regards to parking
issues. Each year we prioritise sites for potential traffic regulation orders, which
typically comprise the introduction of double yellow lines. The final lining works for
the TROs approved in 2021 should be completed soon. We also commissioned a
traffic study around Wildern School and the report and recommendations have now
been received and are being reviewed with interest by the Committee.
Partnership Working:
Many of the successes that have been achieved in Hedge End, West End and Botley
have been achieved through close working with key partners in the area, particularly
Hedge End Town Council, West End Parish Council and Botley Parish Council. We
are grateful to everyone involved with these organisations for their hard work and
dedication.
The Committee has continued to engage with the Hampshire, Southampton, and Isle
of Wight Clinical Commissioning Group to ensure local residents are represented
when decisions regarding healthcare are considered. The CCG have been tireless
in the delivery of the Covid-19 vaccination programme and I thank them for their
immense effort under such pressure.
The multi-agency Flood Resilience Group started in Hedge End in 2020 has been
expanded to include other areas of the Borough. This partnership is considering a
wide range of measures to seek to proactively manage flood risk across the Borough
in the short and medium term, and more strategically. The group is meeting again to
continue developing these measures.
Regular meetings are being held with Chief Inspector Marcus Cator to discuss local
issues, continuing to strengthen the Committee’s relationship with the Police. The
Hedge End Neighbourhood Policing Team Sergeant, Sgt Stuart Jackson, is leaving
the team in April and I thank him for all his work during his time in Hedge End district.
I look forward to continuing the positive relationship we’ve built with the new team
sergeant, Sgt Sally Ferris, when she arrives.
Concluding Remarks:
The Committee enables local decisions to be made at a local level. However, we
could not carry out our work without the help of our partners, staff, local
organisations and volunteers – you have the gratitude of the Committee. I would also
like to thank the Local Area Manager and Assistant Local Area Manager for the help
and support they give to the Chair, Committee, Town and Parish Councils, local
groups, organisations, and residents.
We will continue to be ambitious for our local area while recognising the challenges
faced with rising costs and global instability. During this coming year, the Committee
is keen to focus on successfully completing the significant projects mentioned above,
and the careful planning of long-term projects such as the Telegraph Woods
improvements and the redevelopment of New Place for our communities, to ensure
we continue to meet the needs of our residents, businesses, and visitors.

Eastleigh Borough Council

137

Finally, I cannot finish my review without commenting on the tragedy that we are
witnessing in Ukraine. As a Council, as a Committee, and as individuals, we stand
with the people of Ukraine and hold them in our thoughts. Many of our local residents
and organisations are providing support in whatever way they can, and I draw solace
from the acts of kindness that we see. I wish you all peace, health, and happiness
for the coming year.
Councillor Cynthia Garton – Chair of the Hedge End, West End and Botley LAC March 2022

138

Eastleigh Borough Council

